
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MAY 1, 2014  Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, MAY 1, 2014 
 

2:30 P.M. 
 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for 
Thursday, May 1, 2014. 

 
2. Discuss the City’s strategic plan, and various strategic and budget related policy issues to 

include but not limited to TCIP & Traffic Management.  
 

3. Discuss the proposed Avenue U connector intersection {Item 4(D) on the Consent Agenda}. 
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code, §551.072 – Real Property – 
The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a 
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MAY 1, 2014  Page 2 of 5 
 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. Invocation  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
 
III. PROCLAMATIONS &  SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
 
3.   National Nurses Week  May 6 – 12, 2014  
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 
 
4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 

resolutions for each of the following: 
 
Minutes 
 
(A) April 17, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting 
(B) April 21, 2014 Special Called Meeting 
 
 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MAY 1, 2014  Page 3 of 5 
 

 
(C) 2104-7306-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 

Matous Construction, LTD of Belton for the rehabilitation/replacement of the return 
activated sludge screw pumps at Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant in the 
amount not to exceed $333,000. 

 
(D) 2014-7307-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a 

professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA), for 
coordinating the acquisition of rights-of-way, bidding, construction administration, and 
on-site services for Avenue U from South 1st Street to the proposed 13th - 17th connector 
intersection in an amount not to exceed $153,300. 

 
(E) 2014-7308-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 

agreement with Austech Roof Consultants, Inc. of Austin for the design and bidding for 
roof replacement work at the Frank Mayborn Convention Center and the Summit Center 
in an amount not to exceed $32,567. 

 
(F) 2014-7309: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a professional 

services agreement with Clark & Fuller, PLLC (C&F), for required to reconstruct sanitary 
sewer within the Western Hills subdivision in an amount not to exceed $38,615.82, as 
well as, declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of 
2014 Utility Revenue Bonds.   

 
Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 
 
(G)  2014-4654: SECOND READING - A-FY-13-12: Consider adopting an ordinance 

authorizing the abandonment and conveyance of a 95' X 80' section of South 9th Street 
right-of-way, being a 0.17-acre portion of land, as measured from the south right-of-way 
line with West G Avenue, situated between Block 39, Moores Addition and Block 62, 
Original Town of Temple as more fully described in the attached exhibit for development 
of the Salvation Army's Center of Hope Transitional Shelter.   

 
(H) 2014-4655: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 

amendments to the City of Temple’s Water Conservation Plan. 
 
Ordinances – First Reading 
 
(I) 2014-4656: FIRST READING – Z-FY-13-37: Consider adopting an ordinance for a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow a transitional shelter operated by the Salvation Army to 
be known as the Temple McLane Center of Hope, within portions of Lot 3, Block 39, 
Lots 1 & 2, Block 62, Lot 2, Block 56 and Lot 1, Block 57, Original Town of Temple, 
County of Bell, Texas, addressed as 501, 420, 413, 411, 410, 409 West G Avenue, 708 
and 709 South 9th Street. 

 
Misc. 
 
(J) 2014-7310-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing submission of a new Storm 

Water Management Program (SWMP) to the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ). 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MAY 1, 2014  Page 4 of 5 
 

 (K) 2014-7311-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal  
  year 2013-2014. 

 
 
VI. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
ORDINANCES 
 
5. (A) 2014-4657: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 

authorizing the annexation of a for a 49.979 tract of land located  between South Pea Ridge 
Road (to the west) and Old Waco Road (to the east),  abutting the city limits boundary to the 
north situated within the Nancy Chance  Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, known as 
the Plains at Riverside. 

 
(B) 2014-4658: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-14-23:  Consider adopting 
an ordinance to take action on permanent zoning upon annexation of a tract of land consisting 
of a total 49.979 +/- acres, where 42.440 +/- acres are proposed for Single-Family Two (SF-2) 
District and 7.539 +/- acres are proposed for Office-2 (O-2) District as part of the proposed 
subdivision plat for The Plains at Riverside, located on the west side of the intersection of Old 
Waco Road and Riverside Trail. 

 
6. 2014-4659: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – A-FY-14-04:  Hold a public hearing to 

consider an Ordinance authorizing abandonment and conveyance of all of the alley located in 
Block 4, Rylander Addition, on the east side of North 12th Street, between East Central Avenue 
and East Adams Avenue, and reserving a public drainage and utility easement in the entire 
abandoned right-of-way. 

 
7. 2014-4660: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-14-22: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a rezone from Agricultural District (AG) to Light Industrial District (LI) on 
44.20 +/- acres, situated in the Mercer Phelan Survey, Abstract 659 and the J. W. Christian 
Survey, Abstract 1070, Bell County, Texas, located at the southwest corner of NW Loop 363 
and Pegasus Drive and addressed as 4222 Pegasus Drive. 

 
8. 2014-4661:– FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-14-24: Consider adopting an 

ordinance for a site plan review, amending Ordinance No. 2001-2748, originally approved 
March 1, 2001 Planned Development (Neighborhood Service) District, and further amended by 
Ordinance No. 2012-4519, March 15, 2012, on Lot 2, Block 1, Johnson Lone Star Properties 
Addition located at 7950 SH 317. 

 
9. 2014-4662: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-14-26: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to Commercial District (C) on 
11.579 +/- acres, being part of Lot 1, Block 1, D.R.S. Addition, located at 111 Hart Road. 

 
10. 2014-4663-: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-25: Consider adopting an 

ordinance on a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow an off-premise sign (billboard) on a 
portion of Lot 1, Block 1, D.R.S. Addition, located at 111 Hart Road, Temple, Texas. 

  
11. 2014-4664: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 

amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6, “Animals and Fowl”, Sec 6-13, Additional 
Regulations, to allow the keeping of miniature swine within the City of Temple in accordance 
with certain provisions. 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MAY 1, 2014  Page 5 of 5 
 

 

12. 2014-4665: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting and ordinance 
authorizing an amendment to the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing and Project Plans to appropriate additional tax increment revenue, expenditures for 
downtown improvements, public improvements and debt service for fiscal years 2014 through 
2033. 

 
  

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
2:20 PM, on April 23, 2014. 
 
______________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

 

 

 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

05/01/14 
Item #4(A-B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) April 17, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting  
(B) April 21, 2014 Special Called Meeting 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
April 17, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting   
April 21, 2014 Special Called Meeting 



TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL

APRIL 17, 2014

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Thursday, April 17, 2014 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.  

Present: 

Regular Agenda Item #4 - Mayor Dunn reminded the council that this was
the 1st public hearing and the 2nd public hearing is set for Monday, April
21, 2014 at 8:30 am.

Consent Agenda Item #5(O) - TIGER Application; if selected, the funds are
awarded in the summer/ fall of 2014.

Bryan Smith, Criterion Management Group, LLC presented this item to the
Council.  This project contains approximately 5,280 square feet for retail
and commercial; 27,140 square feet for residential; and approximately 50
parking spaces on the surface parking lot. Mr. Smith provided several
photos and drawings for the proposed project.  The Arcadia will consist of a
Theater and support 250+ seating; expanded stage; live music and live
theater; multi-use facility; and entrance from Central and 4th Street side.
The parking will consist of 150+ parking spaces. Mr. Smith stated there are
options with the shared use parking.  The total investment is estimated to
be $10-$15 million; with additional $5-$10 million for residential portion.
 Estimated time from start to finish of the project is 22 months of which will 
be phases.

Councilmember Schneider expressed his desire for the parking garage to
be part of the overall design of the project as this is a necessary
component.

All Council indicated their desire to explore all options and wished to pursue
with the project.

Councilmember Perry Cloud 
Councilmember Timothy Davis 
Councilmember Russell T. Schneider 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the
meeting posted for Thursday, April 17, 2014.

2. Receive update from Bryan Smith with Criterion Management Group
regarding the Hawn Hotel property.

Page 1 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



Mr. Blackburn introduced this presentation.  He noted it needs to be 
decided as to if  either or both of these facilities/ programs are to profit 
centers or public amenities; or do we close the doors and gates on both?

Kevin Beavers, Interim Director of Parks and Leisure Services presented 
both of this items to the Council.  First he discussed the Sammons Golf 
Links.  He noted that in 2007 the Park Bond was passed which included 
$568,387 for golf course improvements (renovation of greens; re-routing of 
course; and additional bunkers).  This work was completed in 2011.  Mr. 
Beavers reviewed expenditures, revenues, rounds and recovery rate.  He 
mentioned the largest budget item in the golf course budget is for course 
maintenance. 

Next, he discussed the Summit Fitness Center.  Mr. Beavers stated that 
although it appears to be a fitness center, the Summit is not a true fitness 
center.  The Summit continues to be the recreation center for all in South 
Temple.  Currently there are 5,055 members (categories: families, seniors, 
adult members).  The amenities are attractive to most families as we offer a 
swimming pool, climbing wall, tennis courts, childcare, children's fitness 
room, and racquetball courts.  Mr. Beavers reviewed the cost recovery for 
the last three years.

Mr. Blackburn stated that at the current recovery rate, we will not be able to 
maintain without assistance to the budget. He stated it is his 
recommendation to maintain both, with an effort to achieve the recovery as 
much as we can, as they are community assets.

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Thursday, April 17, 2014 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.  

Present: 

3. Discuss the City's strategic plan, and various strategic and budget
related policy issue to include but not limited to:

   Summit Fitness Center
   Sammons Golf Course

Councilmember Perry Cloud 
Councilmember Timothy Davis 
Councilmember Russell T. Schneider 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn 

I. CALL TO ORDER

Page 2 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



Dr. Ken Ritchie, First Presbyterian Church in Temple voiced the
Invocation.

Shelly Fowler, Deputy City Secretary led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Chris Coleman, 206 North 7th Street addressed the Council.  He stated that
he recently learned that Judy Morales retained an attorney to retain her
seat on the Council. This says that she believes she is above the law. He
asked, will you allow her resume her seat if she chooses to do so?  Mr.
Coleman appealed to the council to not allow this to happen. He then
mentioned concerns with the police department and its officers.  He
believes there are officers using their badge to commit illegal actions.

Emily Grisham, 4365 Airport Trail addressed the Council and thanked the
City for responding to her comments made at the the March 20, 2014
Council meeting. She then stated that not everything was addressed. Ms.
Grisham wants to see the law that dictates and allows the City the authority
to keep property owners off their own property?  She then stated the
officers and the road blocks are an  inconvenience for us and places undue
stress the cattle.

CJ Grisham, 4365 Airport Trail addressed the City Council.  He referenced
the letter and that the residents are being rerouted in order to access their
property.  He mentioned that he too had been stopped and directed to do
such last year, but did not obey the officers and went around the
barricades. Mr. Grisham also stated he had learned that Judy Morales
retained legal counsel to retain her seat in May 2014.  A City Council
position has more power and trust and Judy should not be allowed back on
the City Council with a conviction of a misdemeanor crime. Maybe the
Charter Committee can address this.

Councilmebmer Schneider complimented Officer Perrin for helping to
save his 6-day old grandson.  Officer Perrin took control of this
stressful situation and comforted the Schneider family.  Next, Mayor
Dunn presented the proclamation to Officer Bradley Perrin.

1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

III. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

3. Recognize Officer Bradley Perrin for his prompt action and
assistance on April 10, 2014.

IV. ANNEXATION PUBLIC HEARING

Page 3 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



Brian Chandler, Director of Planning presented this item to the 
Council noting the applicant to be Kiella Land Investments, LLC for 
Groves at Lakewood Ranch. Mr. Chandler stated the petition was 
approved by the Council on April 3, 2014 and at that time directed 
staff to prepare the plan.  He also mentioned there to be no residents 
in the area; that the Municipal Service Plan had been developed by 
Staff; and this was the 1st Public Hearing as required by statute.  The 
second hearing is set for Monday, April 21, 2014, at 8:30 am in the 
Council Chambers.  The Planning and Zoning Commission will 
consider the SF-2 zoning request on May 5, 2014; with the first 
reading for both the annexation and the zoning to be heard by Council 
on May 15, 2014.  This area is to be provided standard City services.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to item 4 
and asked if anyone wished to address this item. There being none, 
Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing closed. 

At this time Mayor Dunn announced the 2nd public hearing will take 
place on Monday, April 21, 2014 at 8:30 in the Council Chambers.

(A) April 3, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting

(B) April 4, 2014 Special Called Meeting

(C) 2014-7284-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an 
asbestos abatement contract with Empire Environmental Group, 
LLC of Balch Springs, Texas for the asbestos abatement of one 
commercial structure funded through the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) in the amount of $57,000.

(D) 2014-7285-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
contract with Signature Offset of Boulder, CO, for the printing of 

4. PUBLIC HEARING - Receive Municipal Service Plan and conduct
a public hearing to receive comments on the possible
annexation of a proposed Lakewood Ranch subdivision on a
136.576 acre tract of land, located to the north of the Highlands
and west of the Windmill Farms subdivisions abutting the city
limits boundary to the north and west situated within part of the
John J. Simmons Survey, Abstract No. 737 and the George V.
Lindsey Survey, Abstract No. 513, Bell County, Texas.

V. CONSENT AGENDA

5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda
items and the appropriate resolutions for each of the following:

Page 4 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



the play-by-play brochures in an estimated amount of $27,869.58 
for the initial contract period which will go through September 
30, 2015.

(E) 2014-7286-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with Vanguard Contractors, LP of Temple 
for the construction of Phase II of the Fire Training Center in the 
amount of $2,157,000.

(F) 2014-7287-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with Bell Contractors, Inc., (Bell) of Belton 
for construction activities required to extend water and sewer 
utilities to North Loop 363 and I-35 in an amount not to exceed 
$1,483,182.90.

(G) 2014-7288-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
construction contract with K&S Backhoe Services, Inc., (K&S) of 
Gatesville for construction activities required to replace water 
and sewer mains in Western Hills in an amount not to exceed 
$1,496,622.96, as well as, declare an official intent to reimburse 
the expenditures with the issuance of 2014 Utility Revenue 
Bonds.

(H) 2014-7289-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
execution of a Memorandum of Agreement with the Central 
Texas Housing Consortium, Temple Housing Authority.

(I) 2014-7290-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
Chapter 380 Agreement with Temple Economic Development 
Corporation (TEDC) for conveyance of a 6.00 acre parcel of City-
owned land located in Synergy Park, Temple, Texas to TEDC.

(J) 2014-7291-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of a storage area network with Dell Marketing LP, of 
Round Rock utilizing the State of Texas DIR contract in the 
amount of $69,938.

(K) 2014-7292-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of sewer line chemical root control services for FY 
2014 from Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Syracuse, New York, 
utilizing a BuyBoard contract in the estimated annual amount of 
$65,000.

(L) 2014-7293-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of 40 metal refuse containers for the Solid Waste 
Division from Rolloffs USA., Durant, OK, through the H-GAC 
Contract (#RH08-12) in the amount of $48,184.

Page 5 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



(M) 2014-7294-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
purchase of a yearly Small Municipality Government Enterprise 
License Agreement and maintenance contract with 
Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI) in the amount 
of $50,000.

(N) 2014-7295-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
City Manager to execute a lease agreement between the City of 
Temple and Dr. Scott Irvine upon the Federal Aviation 
Administration approval permitting the Lessee to lease a 160’ X 
100’ plot of land and construct a 70’ X 60’ private aircraft hangar 
at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.

(O) 2014-7296-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
submission of an application for funding through the U.S. 
Department of Transportation, National Infrastructure Investment 
Grant (TIGER VI) in the amount of $12,000,000, with $10,000,000 
reimbursed to the City through federal funding, to execute the 
construction of the bridge and improvement projects along 
Central Avenue and 1st Street.

(P) 2014-7297-R:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the 
grant application for the Bureau of Justice Assistance 
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program of 2014 for the purchase of 
ballistic vests and replacements for the Police Department in the 
amount of $18,196, with $9,098 of required City matching funds.

(Q) 2014-7298-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a 
one (1) year renewal to the contract with World Fuel Services 
Corporation of Florida (f.k.a. Western Petroleum Company), to 
supply aviation bulk fuels and other business support to operate 
an exclusive fuel dealership at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas 
Regional Airport.

(R) 2014-4652: SECOND READING - Z-FY-14-20: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing a zoning change from 
Agricultural District (AG) to Commercial District (C) on 5.01 +/-
acres, situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract 14, Bell 
County Texas, located on the north side of East Adams Avenue, 
addressed as 2312 East Adams Avenue.

(S) 2014-7299-R: A-FY-13-13:  Consider adopting a resolution to 
release the public utility easement the City reserved in a Deed 
Without Warranty (Document No. 2013-48981) pursuant to 
Ordinance No. 2013-4592, to protect existing utilities pending 
relocation from the abandoned alley through Block 8, Freeman 

Page 6 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



Heights Addition, City of Temple.

(T) 2014-7300-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
funding from the Child Safety Fees for the 2014 Junior Fire Cadet 
Program in the amount of $20,869.

(U) 2014-7301-R: Consider adopting a resolution of support for 
downtown redevelopment.

(V) 2014-7302-R: Consider adopting a resolution dissolving the 
Transit Advisory Committee.

(W) 2014-7303-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing 
budget amendments for fiscal year 2013-2014.

Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud adopt resolution approving the 
Consent Agenda. seconded by Councilmember Russell T. Schneider.

Motion passed unanimously.

ORDINANCES

Mark Baker, Planner, presented this case to the Council and 
noted the applicant to be the Salvation Army.  The applicant is 
requesting the abandonment and conveyance of a 95' x 80' 
section of ROW for construction of the Salvation Army's McLane 
Center of Hope Transitional Shelter, which will require a 
Conditional Use Permit.  The private utility providers servicing 
this area were notifies and have no objections to this request.  
There is a 6" City water line within the area to be abandoned; 
Public Works confirmed this relocation to be complete and there 
are no further issues.  Mr. Baker noted the market value of the 
abandoned ROW has been appraised at $6,100.

VI. REGULAR AGENDA

6. 2014-4654: PUBLIC HEARING - FIRST READING - A-FY-13-
12: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing the
abandonment and conveyance of a 95’ X 80’ section of 
South 9th Street right-of-way, being a 0.17-acre portion of 
land, as measured from the south right-of-way line with 
West G Ave, situated between Block 39, Moores Addition
and Block 62, Original Town of Temple as more fully
described in the attached exhibit for development of the
Salvation Army’s Center of Hope Transitional Shelter.

Page 7 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



It is Staff's recommendation to approve the request as 
submitted by the Salvation Army and to abandon and convey 
the 95' x 80' portion of 9th Street ROW south of its intersection 
with West Avenue G.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 6, and asked if anyone wished to address this item. 
There being none, Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing 
closed.

Motion by Councilmember Timothy Davis adopt ordinance with 
second reading set for May 1, 2014. seconded by 
Councilmember Russell T. Schneider.

Motion passed unanimously.

Ashley Williams, Sustainability & Grant Manager for the City presented this 
item to the Council. She stated that Title 30 of the Texas Administrative 
Code requires that public water systems have an adopted water 
conservation plan and must be updated every five years. The City adopted 
a Water Conservation & Drought Contingency Plan in March 2000.  The 
Conservation Plan was updated in 2009 while the Drought Contingency 
Plan was updated in 2013.  Ms. Williams reviewed the goals within the 
plans; stating it is to extend the life of current water supplies. Goals are 
established for 2020 and  2025 based on a 1% reduction in gallons per 
capita per day per year, assuming an average year of rainfall; with the 
target of 190 GPCD for 2020 and 180 GPCD for 2025. The proposed 
methods to reach these goals is the same as the previous plans.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to item 7 and 
asked if anyone wished to address this item. There being none, Mayor 
Dunn declared the public hearing closed.

Motion by Councilmember Russell T. Schneider adopt ordinance with 
second reading set for May 1, 2014. seconded by Councilmember Timothy 
Davis.

Motion passed unanimously.

RESOLUTIONS

7. 2014-4655: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting 
an ordinance authorizing amendments to the City of Temple’s Water 
Conservation Plan.

8. 2014-7304-R: P-FY-13-46: Consider adopting a resolution 

Page 8 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



Tammy Lyerly, Planner, presented this case to the Council and noted 
the applicant to be Robert E. Mitchell for James Herring.  This 
development is in the ETJ and can only be accessed off of Water 
Works Road; this is the last part of development that has already 
been established. This plat was deemed complete by DRC on March 
10, 2014.  There are no zoning regulations in the ETJ and water will 
be provided through 6" water lines.  This development will be serviced 
by septic systems. The developer is request three exception (1) park 
fees; (2) extension of streets; and (3) residential subdivision 
entrances.

The developer has requested an exception to the UDC Section 8.3 
related to Park Land Dedication to waive required park fees in the 
sum of $9,675.  The UDC stated park land dedication is not required if 
the City's ETJ if all of the following circumstances exist: (1) are 
proposed for development is more than one mile from the existing city 
limits; (2) the proposed subdivision will create fewer than nine lots; 
and (3) the city has not set forth plans to annex the area proposed for 
development in the City's Municipal Annexation Plan.

Next exception, UDC Section 8.2.1.D.4b - Projection of Streets to 
waive required extensions of streets.  Each subdivision must provide 
for the location a reasonable number of street openings to adjoining 
properties; of which must occur a minimum of every 1,000 feet or in 
alignment with existing or proposed street along each boundary of the 
subdivision.  This is adjacent to the Fort Hood Military Reserve to the 
west and is unable to extend a street in any direction.  The applicant 
has provided a stub to adjacent undeveloped property to the east for 
a future extension.

The last exception is for UDC 8.2.1.D.3- Residential Subdivision 
Entrances and Chapter 12 Fire Prevention Code 2009; section 12-
10.c.  Water Works Road is the only entrance for the entire Shiloh 
Terrance Development.  There are proposed plat's 43 additional 
residential lots, along with other phases, exceeds 150 lots.  The 
applicant has provided a stub to adjacent undeveloped property to the 
east for future expansion.  The Fire Department supports the 
exception a the applicant as furnished a stub and this is an extension 
of existing conditions. 

authorizing approval of the Final Plat of Shiloh Terrace, Phase
Four, a 28.84 +/- acre, 3-block, 43-lot, residential subdivision with 
requested exceptions to Unified Development Code regarding
park fees; extension of streets; and Residential Subdivision
Entrances, as well Chapter 12 Fire Prevention and Protection,
regarding number of required entrances, of which is located
north of Sparta Road and west of Water Works Road in Temple’s 
western E.T.J.

Page 9 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



It is staff's recommendation to approve the Final Plat of Shiloh 
Terrace, Phase Four with the applicant's requested exceptions.  
Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this at their meeting on 
March 17, 2014, and voted 6/0 to recommend approval of the final 
plat as requested by the applicant.  Commissioner Jones, Crisp and 
Fettig were absent from that meeting.

Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud adopt resolution as 
presented seconded by Councilmember Russell T. Schneider.

Motion passed unanimously.

BOARD APPOINTMENTS

Mr. Graham, City Attorney gave a brief explanation to the Council.  He 
stated this is to appoint a 27 member Charter Review Committee. If is 
the Council's desire to call this election and have this item on the 
November 4, 2014 ballot the election needs to called by August 26, 
2014.  This resolution will create the committee and set the charge of 
which will be completed by July 15th to allow Council time to review 
and decide what language to put on the November ballot. 

Mayor Dunn stated each Councilmember was asked to select and 
provide five individuals within their respective single member districts 
to serve on the committee. At this time each member of the council 
read the individuals they selected.

Councilmember Davis (District 1) selected Michelle Fettig; CJ 
Grisham; Rosa Hernandez; Arti Polchinski; and Bruce Walker.

Mayor Dunn selected District 2, Manuel Alaniz; Alesia Dawson; 
Dewayne McBride; Dorothy Powell; and Richard Schneider.

Councilmember Cloud (District 3) selected Thomas Baird; Harry 
Adams; Jan Janczak; Dan Jones; and Sonjanette Crossley.

Councilmember Schneider (District 4) selected John Kiella; Bob 
Browder; Larry Wilkerson; Mike Pilkington; and Karen Matous.

Mayor Dunn selected Roscoe Harrison; Tony Jeter; Jason Parks; Bill 

9. 2014-7305-R: Consider adopting a resolution establishing a
Charter Review Committee, appointing the Committee
membership, including a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson, and 
charging the Committee to perform a comprehensive review of
the City Charter.

Page 10 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



Leak; and Y.V. Rao as at-large members and David Yeilding as Chair 
and Tanya Mikeska-Reed as Co-Chair. 

Motion by Councilmember Russell T. Schneider adopt resolution as 
presented and with recommended appointments seconded by 
Councilmember Timothy Davis.

Motion passed unanimously.

________________________ 

Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 
ATTEST:

____________________

Lacy Borgeson 
City Secretary 

Page 11 of 11City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=558&doc_id=ad1f67b6-...



TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL

APRIL 21, 2014

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Monday, April 21, 2014 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 
2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.  

Present: 

Councilmember Timothy Davis voiced the Invocation.

Brian Chandler, Director of Planning led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Brian Chandler, Director of Planning presented this to the Council.
He noted this is the 2nd public hearing with regards to the voluntary
annexation; as the 1st hearing was conducted on Thursday, April 17,
2014, at 5:00 pm.  He reminded Council of the schedule for this
process. Mr. Chandler stated there will be a zoning case (Z-FY-14-23)
which will accompany this annexation and will be heard at the
Council's meeting on May 1, 2014.

Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing open with regards to item 3
and asked if anyone wished to address this item.  There being none,
Mayor Dunn declared the public hearing closed.

Councilmember Perry Cloud 
Councilmember Timothy Davis 
Councilmember Russell T. Schneider 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn 

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. ANNEXATION PUBLIC HEARING

3. PUBLIC HEARING - Receive Municipal Service Plan and conduct
the second public hearing to receive comments on the possible
annexation of a proposed Lakewood Ranch subdivision on a
136.576 acre tract of land, located to the north of the Highlands
and west of the Windmill Farms subdivisions abutting the city
limits boundary to the north and west situated within part of the
John J. Simmons Survey, Abstract No. 737 and the George V.
Lindsey Survey, Abstract No. 513, Bell County, Texas.

Page 1 of 2Special Called City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=559&doc_id=685e88d0-...



________________________ 

Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 
ATTEST:

____________________

Lacy Borgeson 
City Secretary 

Page 2 of 2Special Called City Council Meeting

4/24/2014http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=559&doc_id=685e88d0-...



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

05/01/14 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva P.E., Public Works Director 
Thomas Brown, Utility Services Director 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Matous 
Construction, LTD of Belton for the rehabilitation/replacement of the return activated sludge screw 
pumps at Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount not to exceed $333,000. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The return activated sludge pumps (RAS) are a critical part of the treatment 
process at the Wastewater Plant. Activated sludge is a treatment process that uses a suspended 
growth of organisms to remove biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) and suspended solids from the 
wastewater. The solids are separated from the wastewater in the Clarifiers. These solids are either 
sent to the dewatering facilities (Waste Activated Sludge, WAS) or recycled to the front of the aeration 
process and mixed with the influent wastewater (Return Activated Sludge, RAS). The RAS contains 
microorganisms that are very efficient at digesting organic matter in the aeration process and is vital 
to maintaining the plant’s ability to effectively treat the influent wastewater. The RAS pumps are the 
original pumps installed when the WWTP plant was built in 1994. One of the two pumps has failed 
and both pumps need to be rehabilitated or replaced immediately.  
 
In an effort to address these needs, Kasberg Patrick and Associates was retained for engineering 
services, including design and site observation. KPA’s opinion of probable cost was $300,000.  
Identified in updates to the City’s Utility capital improvement project list, this project will result in 
replacing and the rehabilitation of the RAS pumps. If the pumps and motors are not rehabilitated or 
replaced this may cause compliance issues at the WWTP.  
 
On April 4, 2014 two bids were received for construction of the project.  Per attached bid tabulation, 
Matous Construction, LTD submitted the lowest bid in the amount of $333,000.  References were 
checked and public records staff agree that Matous Construction is qualified to complete the project.  
Construction time allowed for this project is 160 days. 
 
 
 



         05/01/14 
        Item #4(C)  

       Consent Agenda 
         Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: Currently, funding in the amount of $256,303.80 is available in account 561-5500-
535-6945, project 100993 to partial fund this contract.  A budget adjustment is being presented to 
Council for authorization allocating the remaining funds needed in the amount of $76,697 from Capital 
– Special Projects / Contingency Fund Balance, account 561-5000-535-6532 to WWTP RAS
Replacement Pump, account 561-5500-535-6945, project 100993, to fund the construction with 
Matous Construction, LTD in the amount not to exceed $333,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of recommendation 
Bid tabulation  
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 







Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2014
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER

PROJECT 
# DECREASE

561-5500-535-69-45 100993

561-5000-535-65-32 76,697        

TOTAL………………………………………………………………………………… 76,697$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

To allocate additional funds needed to fund the construction contract with Matous Construction, LTD for the 
rehabilitation/replacement of the return activated sludge screw pumps at Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount 
not to exceed $333,000.

5/1/2014

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

76,697$      

INCREASE

76,697$      

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

WWTP - Replace RAS Pump

Capital - Special Projects/Contingency

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  2014-7306-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH MATOUS 
CONSTRUCTION, LTD. OF BELTON, TEXAS, FOR THE 
REHABILITATION/REPLACEMENT OF THE RETURN ACTIVATED 
SLUDGE SCREW PUMPS AT DOSHIER FARM WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $333,000; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, the return activated sludge pumps (RAS) are a critical part of the treatment 
process at the Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant - activated sludge is a treatment 
process that uses a suspended growth of organisms to remove biochemical oxygen demand and 
suspended solids from the wastewater;  
 

Whereas, the RAS contains microorganisms that are very efficient at digesting 
organic matter in the aeration process and is vital to maintaining the plant’s ability to 
effectively treat the influent wastewater; 

 
Whereas, the RAS pumps are the original pumps installed when the plant was built in 

1994 and one of the two pumps has failed – both pumps are in need of rehabilitation or 
replacement immediately; 

 
Whereas, Kasberg, Patrick & Associates (KPA) was retained for engineering services, 

including design and site observance; 
 
  Whereas, on April 4, 2014, two (2) bids were received for construction of this project 
and both staff and KPA recommend award of the contract to the lowest bidder, Matous 
Construction, LTD. of Belton, Texas;   
 

Whereas, funding is available for this construction contract, however an amendment 
to the fiscal year 2013-2014 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 
561-5500-535-6945, Project No. 100993; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
construction contract with Matous Construction, LTD. of Belton, Texas, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for the rehabilitation/replacement of the return activated sludge 
(RAS) screw pumps at Doshier Farm Wastewater Treatment Plant, in an amount not to exceed 
$333,000. 

 



2 
 

 
 
 
Part 2:  The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2013-2014 

budget, substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 

         THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               

        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

  
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson       Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
05/01/14 

Item #4(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, PE, Public Works Director 
Don Bond, PE, CFM, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a professional 
services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA), for coordinating the acquisition of 
rights-of-way, bidding, construction administration, and on-site services for Avenue U from South1st 
Street to the proposed 13th - 17th connector intersection in an amount not to exceed $153,300. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  On May 5, 2011, Council authorized a professional services agreement with KPA 
in the amount of $347,450 to design the roadway, drainage, utilities, striping, signage, landscaping, 
pedestrian facilities and features for Avenue U from Scott & White Boulevard to 1st Street and the 13th 
- 17th connector from Avenue R to Loop 363.  A Map of the project locations is attached. 
 
On September 2, 2013, the city approved the first contract amendment in the amount of $13,700.  
That contract amendment revised the design for the 13th - 17th connector to accommodate the final 
location of fill material from an adjacent Scott & White project.    
 
On April 23, 2014, the Temple Redevelopment Zone #1 Board approved to recommend to Council 
this second amendment to the professional services agreement in an amount not to exceed 
$153,300. 
 
Consultant services recommended under this contract amendment include the following tasks and 
costs: 
 
  Professional Services 
 
  Rights-of-Way Coordination    $     13,200.00 
  Bidding                                                     $       6,500.00 
 Construction Administration                         $     77,400.00 
  On-Site Representation                                    $     56,200.00 
 
      TOTAL             $   153,300.00 

 



05/01/14 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

These services are proposed for the portion of Avenue U extending from South 1st Street to the 
proposed intersection with the 13th-17th connector. This portion of construction is estimated at 
$2,800,000 and expected to require 10 months for completion. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funds are available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, 
Line 460, account 795-9800-531-6874, project 101012, to fund this contract amendment. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Proposal 
Resolution 













1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7307-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP, 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR COORDINATING THE ACQUISITION OF 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY, BIDDING, CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION, AND 
ON-SITE SERVICES FOR AVENUE U FROM SOUTH 1ST STREET TO THE 
PROPOSED 13TH – 17TH CONNECTOR INTERSECTION, IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $153,300; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on May 5, 2011, Council authorized a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, (KPA) of Temple, Texas to design the roadway, drainage, 
utilities, striping, signage, landscaping, pedestrian facilities and features for Avenue U from 
Scott & White Boulevard to 1st Street and the 13th – 17th connector from Avenue R to Loop 363; 
 
 Whereas, on September 2, 2013, the City approved the first contract amendment in the 
amount of $13,700 which revised the design for the 13th – 17th connector to accommodate the 
final location of fill material from an adjacent Scott & White project;  
 
 Whereas, on April 23, 2014, the Temple Reinvestment Zone #1 Board approved to 
recommend to Council, a second amendment to the professional services agreement which will 
include coordinating the acquisition of rights-of way, bidding, construction administration and 
on-site representation, in an amount not to exceed $153,300; 
 
 Whereas, these services are proposed for the portion of Avenue U that extends from 
South 1st Street to the proposed intersection with the 13th – 17th connector; 
 
 Whereas, funds are available for this contract amendment in the Reinvestment Zone 
Number One Financing and Project Plans Account No. 795-9800-531-6874, Project No. 101012, 
Line 460; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
amendment to a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of 
Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for coordinating the acquisition of 
rights-of-way, bidding, construction administration, and on-site services for Avenue U from 
South 1st Street to the proposed 13th – 17th connector intersection, in an amount not to exceed 
$153,300. 



2 
 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

05/01/14 
Item #4(E) 

 Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Austech Roof Consultants, Inc. of Austin for the design and bidding for roof replacement work at 
the Frank Mayborn Convention Center and the Summit Center in an amount not to exceed $32,567. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Included in the FY 2014 budget is a project to replace the roofs at two city 
facilities: the Frank Mayborn Convention Center and the Summit Center. The project includes the 
schematic design, design development, construction documents, and bidding for the replacement of 
both roofs. 
 
The attached Proposal includes fees for the scope of work listed above: 
 
Summit Center  

Phase Amount 

1. Pre-Design $1,934
2. Bidding Documents 5,415
3. Bid Phase 387

Total $7,736
 
Frank Mayborn Convention Center 

Phase Amount 

1. Pre-Design $6,208
2. Bidding Documents 17,381
3. Bid Phase 1,242

Total $24,831
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Funding is appropriated in the accounts below. 

Description Account # Project # Available Funds 

Roof Replacement – Summit  110-5924-519-6310 101025 $   45,285

Roof Replacement – Mayborn Center 240-4400-551-6310 101057 $ 130,000

Total Available Funds $ 175,285



05/01/14 
Item #4(E) 

 Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Proposal 
Resolution 



 

2312 Western Trails Blvd., Suite 403 - Austin, TX 78745 - (512)443-7255 Fax: 443-1085 

ROOF CONSULTANTS, INC.

April 16, 2014 
 
 
 
Mr. Gerald Ervin 
City of Temple 
2 North Main Street 
Temple, TX  76501 
 
Proj: Frank Mayborn Convention Center, 3303 North 3rd & Summit Center, 620 

Fryer Creek Roof Work 

Austech Roof Consultants, Inc. proposes to provide the following roof consulting services: 

I. Schematic Design Phase 

A. Review existing building plans and specifications, as made available by Client. 

B. Visit site and verify existing penetrations, curbs, flashings, and include on roof plan.   

C. Probe major roof details to help determine as-built construction. 

II. Design Development Phase 

A. Provide Client recommended available options, along with preliminary budget figures. 

B. Solicit Client's preferences for incorporation into Bidding Documents. 

C. Provide limited structural review and report by a licensed Structural Engineer. 

III. Construction Documents Phase 

A. Create roof work Specifications, Detail Drawings, and Roof Plan depicting requirements.  

B. Consult with Owner’s Representative to determine construction contract general conditions, 
insurance and other administrative requirements. 

C. Provide Client with draft documents for review and incorporate Client's revisions into 
documents. 

D. Provide Client with 2 sets of printed bidding documents, sealed by registered architect and 
electronic version of documents in Adobe pdf file format. 

IV. Bidding Phase 

A. Assist Client in solicitation of bidders. 

B. Issue addenda (if necessary). 

C. Conduct Pre-Bid Conference. 

D. Consult with Client to determine successful bidder. 

E. Assist Client in review of pre-contract submittals. 

V. Construction Phase 

A. Construction Phase scope of work shall be determined and budgets developed upon 
successful completion of the Bidding Phase. 

 

 



April 16, 2014 Frank Mayborn Convention Center & Summit Center Roof Work
 

Proposal Page 2
 

VI. Proposed Budgets & Hourly Rates  

A. The budgets below are based upon two options the first would be if the Projects are 
completely separate meaning designed, bid and constructed at different times.  The second 
option is if the Projects are designed at the same time then bid and constructed in the same 
time frame. 

B. Option One (Project designed, bid and constructed at different times 

Summit Center 

P h a s e A m o u n t P e rc e n t
I.    P r e -De s ig n $ 2 ,226 2 5%
II.   B id d in g  Do c u m e n ts $ 6 ,234 7 0%
III.  B id  P h a s e $445 5%
IV .  Co n s tr u c tio n  P h a s e  (p a r t-t im e ) $0 0%

T o ta ls : $ 8 ,905 10 0%

 
Frank Mayborn Convention Center 

B ud get
P h ase Am o un t Percen t

I.    Pr e-D esig n $7 ,101 25%
II.   B id d in g  D o cu m en ts $19 ,884 70%
III.  B id  Ph a se $1 ,420 5%
IV.   C o n stru ctio n  P h ase (p ar t-t im e ) $0 0%

T otals : $28 ,405 100%
 

 
C. Option Two (Project designed, bid, and constructed near the same time frame) 

 
Summit Center 

P h ase Am o un t Percen t
I.    Pr e-Desig n $1 ,934 25%
II.   B id d ing  Do cu m en ts $5 ,415 70%
III.  B id  Pha se $387 5%
IV.   Co n stru ctio n  P h ase (p ar t-t im e ) $0 0%

T otals : $7 ,735 100%

 
Frank Mayborn Convention Center 

B ud get
P h ase Am o un t Percen t

I.    Pr e-Desig n $6 ,208 25%
II.   B id d ing  Do cu m en ts $17 ,381 70%
III.  B id  Pha se $1 ,242 5%
IV.   Co n stru ctio n  P h ase (p ar t-t im e ) $0 0%

T otals : $24 ,830 100%
 



April 16, 2014 Frank Mayborn Convention Center & Summit Center Roof Work
 

Proposal Page 3
 

NOTE: We anticipate developing construction documents for each Project and each Project 
being bid and awarded as stand-alone work.  But if the Schematic Design, Design 
Development and Construction Document phases can be accomplished at the same 
time there is a cost benefit reflected above. 

VII. Hourly Rates  

Rates below are for services requested by Client not included in above scope of services.  Written 
authorization will be obtained prior to providing additional services (if any).  Expenses (if any) will 
be invoiced at cost. 

Classification Hourly Rate 
Principal $150 
Senior Consultant $120 
Consultant  $90 
Construction Observer $80 
Secretary/Word Processing $50 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 Austech can monitor Contractor progress during the Work and report construction phase budget 
status to Client's Representative.  Client's Representative may choose to change frequency and 
duration of Austech's visits.   

 Austech will invoice monthly, with updates on budget balance indicated on each invoice.  
Balance left in Budgets, upon conclusion of services, will not be invoiced. 

 Austech does not provide environmental, structural or mechanical engineering services, but will 
coordinate with these professionals, when conditions require their services.  Services for these 
professionals are not included in our scope of work unless by line item above. 

Please call if you have any questions.   

 
Ken Ollinger RRC, CCCA 
Roof Consultant 
ken@austechrci.com 

File:  P2014-014R.doc 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7308-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
AUSTECH ROOF CONSULTANTS, INC., OF AUSTIN, TEXAS, FOR THE 
DESIGN AND BIDDING FOR ROOF REPLACEMENT WORK AT THE FRANK 
MAYBORN CONVENTION CENTER AND THE SUMMIT CENTER, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $32,567; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, included in the fiscal year 2014 budget is a project to replace the roofs at two 
city facilities:  the Frank Mayborn Convention Center and the Summit Center; 

Whereas, the project includes the schematic design, design development, construction 
documents and bidding for the replacement of both roofs; 

Whereas, staff recommends authorizing a professional services agreement with Austech 
Roof Consultants, Inc., of Austin, Texas for the design and bidding for roof replacement at the 
Frank Mayborn Convention Center and the Summit Center, in an amount not to exceed $32,567; 

Whereas, funding for this professional services agreement is available in Account No. 
110-5924-519-6310, Project No. 101025 (Summit Center) and Account No. 240-4400-551-6310, 
Project No. 101057 (Frank Mayborn Convention Center); and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with Austech Roof Consultants, Inc., of Austin, Texas, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, for the design and bidding for roof replacement work 
at the Frank Mayborn Convention Center and the Summit Center, in an amount not to exceed 
$32,567. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of May, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

05/01/14 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a professional 
services agreement with Clark & Fuller, PLLC (C&F), for required to reconstruct sanitary sewer within 
the Western Hills subdivision in an amount not to exceed $38,615.82, as well as, declare an official 
intent to reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of 2014 Utility Revenue Bonds.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Reconstruction of Geronimo Trail and portions of Antelope, Chisholm, and Deer 
Trails in Western Hills has been designed. Construction of the prerequisite water and sanitary sewer 
main reconstruction has been awarded. Other sanitary sewers in portions of Filly Lane and Fox Trail 
are aged and beginning to fail. See attached Map.  
 
In December of 2012, the City executed a professional services agreement with C&F in the amount of 
$17,050 to conduct a geotechnical investigation and preliminary street cross-section design.  On April 
4, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with C&F to design, bid, and 
administer the utility and street reconstruction in an amount not to exceed $642,074.  On April 17 of 
this year, Council awarded the utility reconstruction contract to K&S Backhoe Services, Inc., of 
Gatesville in an amount not to exceed $1,496,622.96. 
   
The additional improvements described in the attached Proposal comprise approximately 630 feet of 
10” sewer and 661 feet of 8” sewer reconstruction. A map is attached. No additional right-of-way or 
easement is required. The Engineer’s preliminary OPC is $280,480.25. 60 additional calendar days 
are required for design. 
  
Consultant services and costs recommended are: 
 
  Surveying      $    5,525.00 
  Design      $   23,840.82 
  Construction Administration   $        750.00 
  Inspection Services     $     8,500.00 
 
      TOTAL  $   38,615.82 

    



05/01/14 
Item #4(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Council authorized this project as part of the Capital Improvement Plan in the FY 
2014 Budget.  This project will be funded with the proposed 2014 Utility Revenue Bonds to be issued 
Fall 2014.  Funds in the amount $1,800,000 will be made available in account 561-5200-535-6950, 
project 100967, to fund this contract amendment in the amount of $38,615.82 with Clark & Fuller, 
PLLC. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Proposal 
Map 
Resolution



 City of Temple – 2013 Western Hills Roadway and Utility Replacement Project-Additional Services Proposal 1 

April 8, 2014 

City of Temple 
Director of Public Works 
Nicole Torralva, P.E. 
3210 E. Ave. H, Bldg. A 
Temple, TX  76501 

Re:  Additional Services Proposal for the City of Temple - 2013 Western Hills Roadway and Utility 
Replacement Project –Sanitary Sewer Main Replacement Antelope - Fox 

Dear Mrs. Torralva, 

We would like to thank the City of Temple for the opportunity to submit a preliminary opinion of 
probable cost and engineering fee proposal for Additional Services for the City of Temple - 2013 Western 
Hills Roadway and Utility Replacement Project – Sanitary Sewer Main Replacement Antelope - Fox.  
(Please refer to attached maps and documents for further information). 

This project will consist of approximately 630 linear feet of new 10” Sanitary Sewer Main and 661 linear 
feet of new 8” Sanitary Sewer Main construction to replace existing utility mains that are aging and 
beginning to fail.   

Clark & Fuller, PLLC will complete design topography surveys, new sanitary sewer main designs, 
construction document preparation, provide construction administration, and post construction record 
drawings.  In addition, at the City of Temple’s request, Clark & Fuller, PLLC can also provide daily on-
site project representation and inspection services. 

The proposed timeline for the project design phase is 60 calendar days from the authorization of notice to 
proceed.  Furthermore we estimate the contractor’s time to construct to be 90 calendar days. 

Clark & Fuller, PLLC, hereinafter Engineer, proposes to the City of Temple, hereinafter Client, 
Professional Engineering, Inspection, and Surveying Services for a Lump Sum Amount not to exceed 
$38,615.82.  We estimate the total cost of construction to be $280,480.25 and we estimate the total cost of 
construction including professional services and contingencies to be $319,096.07.  (Please refer to 
attached Maps, Exhibits, and the Preliminary Opinion of Probable Cost for an itemized breakdown and 
scope of services.) 

Please contact us if you require additional information or have further questions regarding this proposal. 

Sincerely, 

Monty L. Clark, P.E., CPESC  



 City of Temple – 2013 Western Hills Roadway and Utility Replacement Project-Additional Services Proposal 2 

 

     
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

Additional Services Proposal for City of Temple - 2013 Western Hills Roadway and Utility 
Replacement Project 

Sanitary Sewer Main Replacement Antelope-Fox 
 

Scope of Professional Services 
 
 

Surveying Services:        $ 5,525.00 
 Provide Project Elevation Benchmark  
 Locate Existing Rights of Ways and Property Boundaries 
 Prepare Design Topography Surveys 
 Provide Construction Staking 

o Final Manhole Locations 
 

Civil Engineering Design Phase:       $ 23,840.82 
 Research Existing Utilities 
 Prepare Final Design Construction Documents 
 Technical  Specifications 
 Provide Engineers Opinion of Construction Cost and Probable Days to Complete Project 

Construction  
 Attend and Facilitate Project Coordination with the City Staff  
 Attendance at Property Owner/Neighborhood Meetings 
 Provide Miscellaneous Maps and Exhibit Drawings (if required) 

 
Project Bidding Phase:             N/A  
 
Construction Phase:        $     750.00  

 Attend and facilitate a Pre-Construction Meeting 
 Review all Contractor Submittals 
 Provide Construction Administration and Project “Site” Visits to assist contractor with field 

construction questions  
 Assist the City of Temple with Construction Questions and Respond to Requests for Information 

(RFI’s) 
 Review Contractor Applications for Payment and insure conformance with percentage of 

construction complete 
 Execute Necessary Change Orders 
 Attend Final Project Inspection 
 Provide Final Inspection Punch List 
 Prepare Record Drawings 

 
Daily Onsite Construction Inspection Services      $ 8,500.00 

 Provide Daily On-Site Project Representation and Inspection Services 
 

 
 

 



 City of Temple – 2013 Western Hills Roadway and Utility Replacement Project-Additional Services Proposal 3 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 

 
Licensed Professional Engineer             $ 110.00/hr. 
 
Licensed Professional Architect      $ 125.00/hr. 
 
Design Technician       $ 70.00/hr. 

 
CADD Technician       $ 60.00/hr. 

 
CADD Draftsman       $  50.00/hr. 

 
Clerical         $  35.00/hr. 

 
Licensed Professional Land Surveyor     $ 105.00/hr. 

 
Field Crew & Total Station      $ 130.00/hr. 

 
Survey Research and Schematic Production    $  90.00/hr. 

 
Daily On-Site Inspection Services     $  40.00/hr. 

 
 
 
 



ANTELOPE TRAIL

KEYED NOTES

FI
LLY LANE

ER
IE

 D
RI

V
E

RED RIVER CIRCLE

FOX TRAIL

FOX TRAIL

ERMINE TRAIL

ERIE DRIVE

DEER TRAIL

BR
A

ZO
S 

D
RI

V
E

A
N

TE
LO

PE
 T

R
A

IL

SW
 H

K
 D

O
D

G
EN

 L
O

O
P 

36
3



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7309-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CLARK & FULLER, PLLC, OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, TO RECONSTRUCT SANITARY SEWER WITHIN THE WESTERN 
HILLS SUBDIVISION IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $38,615.82; 
DECLARING OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN 
EXPENDITURES WITH THE ISSUANCE OF 2014 UTILITY REVENUE 
BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, reconstruction of Geronimo Trail and portions of Antelope, Chisholm, and 
Deer Trails in the Western Hills Subdivision has been designed and construction of the 
prerequisite water and sanitary sewer main reconstruction has been awarded; 
 
 Whereas, other sanitary sewers in portions of Filly Lane and Fox Trail are aged and 
beginning to fail and the additional necessary improvements are approximately 630 feet of 10 
inch sewer and 661 feet of 8 inch sewer reconstruction – no additional right-of-way or easement 
is required; 
 
 Whereas, in December of 2012, the City executed a professional services agreement with 
Clark & Fuller, PLLC (C&F), of Temple, Texas to conduct a geotechnical investigation and 
preliminary street cross-section design; 
 
 Whereas, on April 4, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with 
C&F to design, bid and administer the utility and street reconstruction – on April 17, 2014, 
Council then awarded the utility reconstruction contract to K&S Backhoe Services, Inc, of 
Gatesville, Texas;  
 

Whereas, the City of Temple anticipates the issuance of one or more series of 
obligations, the interest on which will be excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in order to finance all or a portion of this project; 
 

Whereas, certain expenditures relating to the Project will be paid prior to the issuance of 
the Obligations and the City hereby certifies that such expenditures have not been made prior to 
the date of passage of this Resolution; 
 

Whereas, upon issuance of the Obligations, the City desires to reimburse these prior 
expenditures with proceeds of the Obligations;  
 

Whereas, Section 1.150.2 of the Treasury Regulations provides that an expenditure on 
the Project may not be reimbursed from Obligation proceeds unless, along with other 
requirements, the City declares official intent to reimburse the expenditure prior to the date that 
the expenditure to be reimbursed was paid; and 
 

Whereas, this project was authorized as part of the Capital Improvement Plan in the 
fiscal year 2014 budget and funds will be made available for this contract amendment in Account 
No. 561-5200-535-6950, Project No. 100967; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 



2 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
amendment to a professional services agreement with Clark & Fuller, PLLC, of Temple, Texas, 
after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for reconstruction of sanitary sewer within the 
Western Hills subdivision, in an amount not to exceed $38,615.82, as well as declare an official 
intent to reimburse the expenditure with the issuance of 2014 Utility Revenue Bonds. 

 
Part 2: This Resolution is a declaration of official intent under Section 1.150.2 of the 

Treasury Regulations by the City that it reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures 
described in Part 1 with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City, such debt to be issued on or 
before eighteen (18) months after the date of (i) the date the first  expenditure is paid; or (ii) the 
date on which the property is placed in service, but in no event three years after the first 
expenditure is paid. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

05/01/14 
Item #4(G)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Planner  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING - A-FY-13-12: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing the abandonment and conveyance of a 95' X 80' section of South 9th Street right-of-way, 
being a 0.17-acre portion of land, as measured from the south right-of-way line with West G Avenue, 
situated between Block 39, Moores Addition and Block 62, Original Town of Temple as more fully 
described in the attached exhibit for development of the Salvation Army's Center of Hope Transitional 
Shelter.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented on second and final reading.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the applicant’s requested abandonment of a portion of 9th Street as 
submitted and described in the item description.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, The Salvation Army, has submitted a request for the abandonment 
of a portion of 9th Street, approximately 7,600 square feet of its intersection with West G Avenue to 
allow for the construction of the Salvation Army’s Center of Hope emergency shelter facility.   
 
The City has a 6” water line within the right-of-way which extends the full length of 9th Street.  Water 
service will be retained for the remainder of 9th Street from a connection to an existing 6” waterline in 
West H Avenue. 
 
Public Works has indicated that relocation of the water line has been completed and no further 
utilities are within the right of way proposed to be abandoned. 
 
Private utility providers servicing the area were notified and indicated no private utilities are located 
within the easement.   
 
No objections were raised by the providers and they concurred with the abandonment. The Utility 
Division within the Public Works/Engineering Department confirmed that the existing utility easement 
does not contain an active line within the boundaries of the subdivision. 
 
The abandonment is for the development of the Salvation Army’s McLane Center of Hope transitional 
housing facility.  The facility requires a conditional use permit which is currently under review and 
scheduled for recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Commission on April 21st.  The conditional 
use permit is anticipated for 1st reading during the May 1st City Council meeting.  



05/01/2014 
Item #4(G)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  If approved, the Salvation Army will be allowed to purchase the abandoned 0.17- 
acre portion of South 9th Street right-of-way at the fair market value of $6,100, according to the 
attached appraisal report. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Surveyors Sketch (Exhibit A)  
Appraisal Report 
Ordinance 



mbaker
Text Box
Page 1 of 2

mbaker
Text Box
Exhibit A

mbaker
Stamp

mbaker
Stamp



mbaker
Text Box
Page 2 of 2

mbaker
Stamp























































1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. A-FY-13-12) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ABANDONMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF 
A SECTION OF SOUTH 9TH STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY, BEING AN 
APPROXIMATELY 0.17 ACRE SECTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY, SITUATED 
BETWEEN BLOCK 39, MOORES ADDITION AND BLOCK 62, ORIGINAL 
TOWN OF TEMPLE, FOR DEVELOPMENT OF THE SALVATION ARMY’S 
CENTER OF HOPE TRANSITIONAL SHELTER; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, the applicant, The Salvation Army, has submitted a request for the 

abandonment of a portion of 9th Street, approximately 7,600 square feet of its 
intersection with West Avenue G to allow for the construction of the Salvation Army’s 
Enter of Home emergency shelter facility; 
 

Whereas, the City has a 6-inch water line within the right-of-way which extends 
the full length of 9th Street – water services will be retained for the remainder of 9th 
Street from a connection to an existing 6-inch waterline on West Avenue H; 
 

Whereas, the Public Works department has indicated that relocation of the water 
line has been completed and no further utilities are within the right of way proposed to 
be abandoned – private utility providers servicing the area were notified and indicated 
no private utilities are located within the easement; 

 
Whereas, no objections were raised by the providers and they concurred with 

the abandonment – the Utility Division of Public Works confirmed that the existing 
utility easement does not contain an active line within the boundaries of the subdivision; 
and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council abandons and conveys an approximately 0.17 acre section 
of right-of-way, situated between block 39, Moores Addition and block 62, Original Town 
of Temple, for development of the Salvation Army’s Center of Hope Transitional Shelter. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas to 

execute a Deed Without Warranty conveying the rights and interests a 95-foot by 90-foot 
section of South 9th Street right-of-way, being an approximately 0.17 acre portion of land, 
as measured from the south right-of-way lien with West Avenue G, situated between block  



2 
 

 
 
38, Moores Addition and block 62, Original Town of Temple, to the Salvation Army, 
which when done, shall be and become a binding act and deed of the City of Temple. 
 

Part 3: If any portion of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 17th day of 

April, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 1st day of May, 2014. 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

_____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
COUNTY OF BELL § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of __________, 2014, by 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the city of Temple, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
 
              
       Notary Public, State of Texas 
 



sh 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

05/01/14 
Item #4(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
Ashley Williams, Sustainability and Grant Manager 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
amendments to the City of Temple’s Water Conservation Plan. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on the second and 
final reading. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 288 requires wholesale public water 
suppliers and retail public water suppliers serving 3,300 connections or more to adopt and submit 
Water Conservation plans to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.  In March 2000, the 
Temple City Council adopted the City’s initial Water Conservation & Drought Contingency Plan.  The 
City’s plan provides a mechanism for conservation of available water supply, protection of the 
integrity of water supply facilities, and protection of the public health, safety and welfare. 

The proposed update considers use and loss over the past five-years and provides new goals for the 
next ten-years, based on two five- year periods.  The proposed goals are based off of a one-percent 
(1%) reduction in water loss per year.  The goals are as follows: 

 To reduce the consumption of water,
 To reduce the loss and waste of water,
 To reduce summertime peak demand,
 To improve efficiency in the use of water,
 To increase recycling and/or reuse of water, and
 To extend the life of current water suppliers.

The plan identifies the requirements that need to be addressed, in accordance with the Texas 
Administrative Code, and recommends the development of the plan for a public water system. The 
plan recommends implementation efforts to improve water conservation across the City.  Through the 
establishment of the above listed goals, conservation may be achieved in a practical manner, which 
are not costly but rather achievable and sustainable. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no direct fiscal impact with regard to expenditures for this ordinance.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 



1

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
ADOPTING AN UPDATE TO THE CITY OF TEMPLE’S WATER 
CONSERVATION PLAN; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 288 requires wholesale public water 
suppliers and retail public water suppliers serving 3,300 connections or more to adopt and submit 
Water Conservation plans to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality; 

Whereas, in March 2000, City Council adopted the City’s initial Water Conservation and 
Drought Contingency Plan which provides a mechanism for the conservation of available water 
supply, protection of the integrity of water supply facilities, and protection of the public health, 
safety, and welfare; 

Whereas, the proposed plan update considers use and loss over the past five years and 
provides new goals for the next ten years, based on two five-year periods – these goals are based off 
of a one-percent (1%) reduction in water loss per year as outlined below: 

 To reduce the consumption of water;
 To reduce the loss and waste of water;
 To reduce summertime peak demand;
 To improve efficiency in the use of water;
 To increase recycling and/or reuse of water; and
 To extend the life of current water suppliers;

Whereas, the proposed plan updates identify the requirements that need to be addressed, in 
accordance with the Texas Administrative Code, and recommends the development of the plan for a 
public water system; 

Whereas, through the establishment of the above listed goals, conservation may be achieved 
in a practical manner, which are not costly but rather achievable and sustainable; and  

Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize these actions. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council adopts an update to the City of Temple’s Water Conservation Plan 
which recommends considers use and loss over the past five years and provides new goals for the 
next ten years, based on two five-year periods – these goals are based off of a one-percent (1%) 
reduction in water loss per year as outlined below: 



 

2

 
 

 To reduce the consumption of water; 
 To reduce the loss and waste of water; 
 To reduce summertime peak demand; 
 To improve efficiency in the use of water; 
 To increase recycling and/or reuse of water; and 
 To extend the life of current water suppliers; 

 
Part 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final judgment or 
decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the same would have 
been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such invalid 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in accordance 

with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 17th day of April, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 

 
   THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 8 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Mark Baker, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – Z-FY-13-37: Consider adopting an ordinance for a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a transitional shelter operated by the Salvation Army to be known as 
the Temple McLane Center of Hope, within portions of Lot 3, Block 39, Lots 1 & 2, Block 62, Lot 2, 
Block 56 and Lot 1, Block 57, Original Town of Temple, County of Bell, Texas, addressed as 501, 
420, 413, 411, 410, 409 West G Avenue, 708 and 709 South 9th Street. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its April 21, 2014 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) voted 8 to 0 to recommend approval of the requested 
conditional use permit in accordance with staff’s recommendation as presented. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented, with the public hearing - second 
reading, and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 

Staff recommends approval of Z-FY-13-37, a Conditional Use Permit to allow a transitional shelter for 
the following reasons: 

1. The request is compatible with the Future Land Use and Character Map (FLUP);
2. Public facilities are available to serve the property;
3. The use is compatible with Zoning and surrounding uses; and,
4. The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the specific standards in Section 5.3.12 of

the Unified Development Code (UDC); and,

Staff recommends approval of the conditional use permit for a transitional shelter subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. Space must be provided inside the transitional shelter so that prospective and current
residents are not required to wait on sidewalks or any other public right-of-way;

2. The transitional shelter must be equipped with a functioning central heating, ventilation and air
conditioning system;

3. The occupancy load and construction of the building must meet the most recent version of the
International Fire Code and Building Code adopted by the City, including fire Safety
requirements;

4. A minimum of one shelter staff member must be present per 25 clients on-premise of the
transitional shelter.  A minimum of one shelter staff member must be present at the shelter at
all times;



05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 8 

5. The transitional shelter shall be designed and operated in a manner that clients are provided
temporary housing for period of up to one year;

6. Occasional, unplanned short term stays that exceed the thirty days or one year normal stay by
clients of emergency and transitional shelters shall not constitute a violation of this ordinance;

7. That a Street Use License be submitted for review for the use of the on-street parking, if
determined necessary;

8. Substantial compliance to the submitted and attached site plan and building elevations shall be
confirmed through review of Construction Documents;

9. That no more than 7 employees shall be on-shift at any one time;
10. Facility resources shall be scheduled and made available to clients in a manner that limits

simultaneous occupancy.
11. That off-street parking to accommodate a maximum employee shift shall be provided;
12. That the Director of Planning may be authorized to approve minor modifications to the site plan

including the provision of off-street parking.

ITEM SUMMARY:  Proposed for portions of property previously occupied by Martha’s Kitchen food 
pantry, the request for the conditional use permit was originally submitted to the City on September 
24, 2013. The conditional use permit has been delayed due to the relocation of a waterline and the 
abandonment of South 9th Street right-of-way (ROW).  Since First Reading of the abandonment was 
heard by City Council on April 17, 2014, the Conditional Use Permit is moving forward. 

The properties as described further in the Item Description are proposed for the development of a 
transitional shelter within the Commercial (C) zoning district.  UDC Section 5.3.12 provides for a 
conditional use permit process for a transitional, emergency or social service shelter in the 
Commercial zoning district. 

The requested conditional use permit would allow approximately 22,017 square feet of floor area for 
the new Temple McLane Center of Hope transitional shelter.  The development area would be within 
portions of property that was previously occupied by the Martha’s Kitchen food pantry as well as 
adjacent property owned by the Salvation Army.  The overall facility will include accommodations for 
up to one-year occupancy for woman and families along with a dining hall facility, classrooms, 
administrative offices, and a chapel within two separate buildings. The Center also includes a 
separate 2,100 square foot men’s shelter located at the NE corner of South 9th Street and West G. 
Avenue.  The proposed development will include 33 on-street parking spaces. 

Per UDC Sections 5.3.12A, a transitional shelter may be permitted subject to the following 
considerations: 

1. A transitional shelter must be a minimum of * 1,000 feet from the following uses:
a. Alcoholic beverage sales (on-premise or off-premise consumption.
b. All residential uses or zoning districts as specified in UDC Section 4.1.1 and in

the use table in UDC Section 5.1.3;
c. Child care use;
d. elementary  or secondary schools, public or private); and,
e. Other transitional, emergency or social service shelters.



05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 8 

* The distance required above must be measured as a straight, direct line from the
property line of a use listed above to the property line of the transitional,
emergency or social service shelter, and in a direct line across intersections.

While the above distance requirements are not mandated, the City Council may consider these 
distances when reviewing the request. Staff has identified that with the exception of Item 1b, none of 
the above uses were found to be within the 1,000 foot distance.  Specific to Item 1b, there is multi-
family zoning (MF-1) less than 1,000 feet and residential uses that immediately border the 
development area. Screening and buffering will be required per UDC Section 7.7 where residential 
uses immediately border with the development.   

In addition, per UDC Section 5.3.12B, a transitional, emergency or social service shelter may be 
permitted in accordance with the use table in UDC Section 5.1 subject to the following standards: 

1. Space must be provided inside the transitional so that prospective and current residents
are not required to wait on sidewalks or any other public right-of-way;

2. The transitional, emergency, or social service shelter must be equipped with a
functioning central heating, ventilation and air conditioning system;

3. The occupancy load and construction of the building must meet the most recent version
of the International Fire Code and Building Code adopted by the City, including all Fire
Safety requirements;

4. A minimum of one shelter staff member must be present per 25 clients on-premise of
the transitional shelter.  A minimum of one shelter staff member must be present at the
shelter at all times;

5. Emergency shelters are facilities designed and operated in a manner that clients are
provided temporary housing for stays of up to thirty (30) consecutive days;

6. Transitional shelters are facilities designed and operated in a manner that clients are
provided temporary housing for periods up to one year; and,

7. Occasional, unplanned short term stays that exceed the thirty day or one year normal
stay by clients of emergency and transitional shelters shall not constitute a violation of
this ordinance.

As part of the overall conditional use permit process, a site plan is required for City Council review. 
The attached site plan allowed staff to make an evaluation and provide the following: 

Parking: Under the previous use as Martha’s Kitchen food pantry, parking was provided by limited 
on-site parking for staff and clientele utilizing the facility.  While the parking requirement for the 
previous use has not been determined, based on the attached 2009 aerial photo comparison, it 
appears that there were as much as 25 on-site parking spaces. In contrast, the proposed Center of 
Hope is providing 33 parking spaces accommodated by only on-street parking. Per UDC Section 7.5, 
new development is required to provide off-street parking.  Parking for the Center of Hope is provided 
with stalls along West G Avenue, South 9th Street and behind the center within ROW but adjacent to 
the abandoned portion of South 9th Street.   



05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 8 

The provided parking is based on the occupancy of the chapel which requires 25 spaces for up to 75 
people, based on 1 space per 3 seats (UDC Section 7.5). The center is expected to employ 13 
people with no more than 7 people on shift at any one time. Therefore, a total of 32 spaces with one 
additional space have been provided.  

In this case, it is noteworthy to clarify that in the strictest interpretation of the UDC, the chapel with a 
seating capacity of 75 people, a dining facility with a seating capacity of 100 people, housing for up to  

85 people, 6 classrooms and employee administrative offices would generate a parking requirement 
far exceeding the 33 parking spaces being provided. Based on staff conversations, with the applicant, 
the program format for occupancy of the individual uses offered by the Salvation Army would be at 
different times and not at the same time.  In other words, clients would arrive, occupy the chapel and 
then move to the dining facility and then onto the classroom room for instruction and then qualifying 
clients would be housed.  The chapel, dining facility, classroom and housing facilities would not be 
occupied at the same time. 

Further, while the center may have upwards of 75 people at any one time, according to the applicant, 
less than 5 would actually have personal vehicles. 

The main employee parking is anticipated to be in the area behind the main building adjacent to the 
abandoned portion of South 9th Street. This area is proposed to accommodate 6 parking spaces and 
room for a required turnaround.  There is a shortage of 1 parking space in this area if a full shift of 7 
were to occur during any particular shift.  However, additional parking is available along West G 
Avenue and South 9th Street on the northern side of West G Avenue 

There are housing accommodations for upwards of 85 people.  Based on the strict interpretation of 
the UDC, 85 spaces would be triggered at one space per bed.  As discussed earlier, clients that 
would be utilizing the resources of housing would also occupy the dining facility, chapel and 
classroom.  Occupancy would not occur at the same time.  Again, according to the applicant, fewer 
than 5 clients have a personal vehicle on site.  

A Street Use License can be used to validate the on-street parking to meet the off-street requirement 
but does not address the overall lack of off-street parking.  At this time, the necessity for the license is 
still being evaluated.  A condition of approval has been added to address the Street Use License 
requirement   

In conclusion, while the proposed parking does not provide any off-street parking and on-street 
parking falls far short of the minimum, the uniqueness of the clientele using the facility and restrictions 
placed on simultaneous occupancies could be considered ample, if not a surplus.  To summarize, 7 
parking spaces are required with a full employee shift and based on applicant experience, if 5 client 
vehicles required parking, a total of 12 parking spaces would be needed at any one time.  It is 
reasonable to say that additional parking could be expected for clients with personal vehicles, based 
on the above, there is a surplus of 21 parking spaces that could be available. 



05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 5 of 8 

While the parking ratios can be justified, the total absence of off-street parking is problematic. 
Martha’s Kitchen, while less intensive, provided off-street parking.  It is suggested at minimum that 
accommodations for employee parking for a maximum shift of 7 be provided off-street to meet the 
intent and spirit of the code.  Condition #12 is suggested to help meet that intent.  The applicant is 
aware of this condition and is evaluating opportunity to provide on-site employee parking.        

Landscaping:  Conceptual landscape information has been provided on the attached site plan. This 
identifies proposed landscape areas within the overall development.  Compliance with landscape 
requirements will be determined with the submittal and review of Construction Documents.  

Exterior Building Materials: A conceptual building elevation has been provided (attached) for 
review. The architect has indicated to staff that 85% masonry and stone is proposed along with EIFS 
(Exterior Insulation and Finish System) for the exteriors around the dining facility and chapel. 
Compliance to required exterior building materials will be determined with the review of Construction 
Documents. 

Buffering and Screening:  While there is some applicant proposed screening of roof mounted 
mechanical units that will be provided, additional screening is required per the UDC 7.7.  This 
additional screening will be along the northern and southern development areas adjacent to the 
residential uses.  The screening and buffering would be in the form of a solid fence and/or 
landscaping. 

DRC Review: The Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed the site plan during their 
October 7, 2013 meeting which was found acceptable after minor revisions. As of early April 2014, 
the site plan was revised again and was forwarded to Public Works and Fire for any further 
comments.  Delays bringing the Conditional Use Permit forward are a result of the relocation of a City 
waterline within the ROW. No new concerns have been identified from the recent circulation. The 
attached site plan and building elevations will be included in the Ordinance, if the conditional use 
permit is approved by City Council.   

South 9th Street Abandonment:  The first reading for the abandonment of a 95’ x 80’ section of the 
South 9th Street ROW was scheduled for consideration by the City Council at their April 17, 2014 
meeting.  Staff will provide an update during the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. A Replat 
will be required in order to combine the abandoned ROW with the adjacent lot.  It is anticipated that 
the Replat will follow after the conditional use permit and site plan. 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table provides the direction from the property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) 
designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
Direction FLUP Zoning  Current Land Use 

Site  Neighborhood Conservation &  C Vacant 
Auto Urban Mixed Use 

North            neighborhood Conservation C & MF-1 SF Residences  
South            Auto-Urban Commercial  GR & O-2    SF Residences  
East Auto-Urban Commercial  C SF Res / Non-Res   
West          Auto-Urban Mixed Use C SF Residences  



05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 6 of 8 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partially 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The Land Use and Character Map identifies the project area as within both the Auto-Urban Mixed 
Use district and the Neighborhood Conservation district.  The Auto-Urban Mixed Use district is a 
hybrid district proposed for areas along and in the vicinity of the central portion of Avenue H, south of 
downtown.  Given the mixing of residential uses that has occurred in this area to date, this 
designation would allow such mixing to continue subject to appropriate buffering and screening 
standards.  On the other hand, Neighborhood Conservation is intended for the protection of existing 
residential neighborhoods.  While the proposed project is consistent with the Auto-Urban Mixed Use 
district, it is not consistent with the Neighborhood Conservation district.  Therefore, the request is in 
partial compliance. 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The Thoroughfare Plan identifies South 9th Street and West G Aveune as local streets. No issues 
related to capacity are expected from the anticipated use of the property.  

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
A 6” water line is available in West G Avenue.  A 6” sewer line is available in the alley between the 
blocks of South 9th Street and South 7th Street to serve the property’s proposed use.  A waterline was 
relocated as part of the South 9th Street abandonment.  No further impacts to City facilities are 
anticipated.  

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
There are no trails identified by the Trails Master Plan map within or adjacent to the development 
area.  Both South 9th Street and West G Avenue identified as existing local streets and no sidewalks 
are required along local streets. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Per UDC Section 4.4.4, in the Commercial zone where a non-
residential use abuts a residential zoning district, a minimum 10’ side yard setback is required.  An 
additional setback is required if the non-residential building exceeds 40’ in height. 



05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 7 of 8 

Refuse containers must be in the rear or side service area.  (UDC Section 7.7.6). 

Buffer and screening is required per UDC Section 7.7.  The buffering would include a combination of 
a minimum 6’ high solid fence and/or landscaping along property boundaries shared with residential 
uses or zoning.   

REVIEW CRITERIA (UDC Section 3.5.4): In determining whether to approve, approve with 
conditions or deny a Conditional Use Permit application, the City Council per UDC Sec. 3.5.2 must 
consider the following criteria.  

A. The conditional use is compatible with and not injurious to the use and enjoyment of the 
property, and does not significantly diminish or impair property values within the immediate 
vicinity.  

B. The establishment of the conditional use does not impede the normal and orderly development 
and improvement of surrounding vacant property.  

C. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and other necessary support facilities have been or 
will be provided.  

D. The design, location and arrangement of all driveways and parking spaces provide for the safe 
and convenient movement of vehicular and pedestrian traffic without adversely affecting the 
general public or adjacent development.  

E. Adequate nuisance prevention measures have been or will be taken to prevent or control 
offensive odors, fumes, dust, noise and vibration.  

F. Directional lighting is provided so as not to disturb or adversely affect neighboring properties.  

G. There is sufficient landscaping and screening to insure harmony and compatibility with 
adjacent property.  

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS (UDC Section 3.5.5):  In authorizing a Conditional Use Permit, the City 
Council may impose additional reasonable conditions necessary to protect the public interest and 
welfare of the community, including a time period for which a Conditional Use Permit is valid. The 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council, in considering and determining the additional 
conditions, may impose such developmental standards and safeguards as conditions and locations 
indicate to be important to the welfare and protection of adjacent property from excessive noise, 
vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, glares, offensive view or other undesirable or 
hazardous conditions. 

REVOCATION & MODIFICATION (UDC Section 3.5.6): A Conditional Use Permit may be revoked 
or modified, after notice to the property owner and a hearing before the City Council, for any of the 
following reasons: 

A. The Conditional Use Permit was obtained or extended by fraud or deception; 
B. One or more of the conditions imposed by the permit has not been met or has been violated; 

or, 
C. The Conditional Use Permit previously authorized is determined to be detrimental to the public 

health, safety and welfare. 



05/01/14 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 8 of 8 

PUBLIC NOTICE:  Twenty Seven notices of the public hearing were sent out to property owners 
within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday 
April 22, 2014, at 3:00 pm, 7 notices had been returned in approval and no notices in denial to the 
proposed conditional use permit.  

The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on April 10, 
2014, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Properties Photos 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Site Plan 
Building Elevations  
Aerial Photo Comparison 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notices 
Ordinance 



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site:  Existing Woman’s Dorm – From South 9th Street - Looking North (C) 

Site:  Undeveloped – From South 9th Street Looking South (C) 



East:  Scattered Service & Commercial Uses (C) 

West:  Scattered Service & Commercial Uses (C) 



North: Existing SF Residences (MF-1 & C) 

South:  Existing SF Residences (GR & O-2) 



80
3

30170
7

71
7

415

70
9

71
3

71
7

411

315
321

616

204

61
3

61
1

309

413

407

60
3

60
8

60
4

518

608

80
4

611

80
8 80

4

307

32370
4

70
8

71
6

71
8

409

71
8

71
2

70
8

501

513

70
5

70
7

71
1

71
7

601
605

71
6

71
8

70
3

60
2

60
8

61
2

61
6

604

61
1

61
5 60
2

60
6

61
0

500
60

7
60

9
61

7

520

517
519

60
4

60
8

61
2

402

415

61
3

410
420

60
1

318

70
5

300

316

C

2F

GR

MF-1

2F

O-2

LI

2F

MF-1

W G AVE

W H AVE

S 9
TH

 ST

S 7
TH

 ST

S 1
1T

H 
ST

W F AVE

S 5
TH

 ST

Z-FY-13-37 Zoning & Location Map Salvation Army
McLane Center of Hope

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

Case Zoning
Address

0 200 400
Feet

4/11/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker



W G AVE

W H AVE

W F AVE

S 9
TH

 ST

S 7
TH

 ST

S 1
1T

H 
ST

S 1
3T

H 
ST

S 5
TH

 ST

S 5
TH

 ST

µ

Z-FY-13-37 Salvation Army
McLane Center of Hope

South 9th Street
& West G Ave 

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 100 20050
Feet

4/11/2014
City of Temple GIS



2733 SF

Secured Storage

Courtyard

2100 SF

Men's Shelter

9
th

 S
tr

e
e
t

Avenue G

1
2
9
' 
- 

4
"

9
th

 S
tr

e
e
t

24' - 0"

1' - 7"

15' - 0"

8 7

5

7

New Concrete Connection to Alley

New Concrete Connection to Alley

150'-0" To Avenue H

180 SF

Dumpster

New Asphalt Parking

19' - 1"

4
5
.0

0
°

New Concrete
Curb And Gutter

New Parallel Parking Spaces

New Ashphalt Parking

New Asphalt Parking

New Sidewalk, Plaza and
Landscape Area

Relocated Fire Hydrant

New 8' Cedar Board
on Board Fence

New 8' Cedar Fence

9
' 
- 

0
" 18' - 0" 6' - 0"

22' - 0"

8
' 
- 

0
"

5
' 
- 

0
"

1
1
' 
- 

6
"

5'
 - 

0"

9'
 - 

0"

9.10
1

Existing Storm Sewer Easement,
Ref Civil

Existing Power Pole and
Overhead Electrical Lines
To Be Removed and Install
Underground, Typ Along
Avenue G.
Ref Civil

Concrete Sidewalk
and Stoop

7
5

' -
 0

"

Building Footprint Building Footprint

3' - 6"

4' - 2"

7
' - 1

"
5
' - 7

"

4' - 3" 7' - 8"

5
' 
- 

8
"

2
' 
- 

8
"

6' - 7"

8
' 
- 

1
"

Typ. Tree Spacing

20' - 0"

New Landscape Area
Around Easement

New Concete "T"
Turnaround

New Parking Spaces

3 3

Site Plan CUP Notes
Proposed Uses:

- Women's Shelter
- Dining Hall
- Administration Offices
- Chapel

Parking:
- 33 Spaces Provided

H
H

 A
rc

h
ite

c
ts

, 
In

c
.

5
9

1
0
 N

o
rt
h

 C
e

n
tr
a

l E
xp

re
ss

w
a

y 
Su

ite
 1

2
0

0
D

a
lla

s,
 T

e
xa

s 
7

5
2

0
6

9
7

2
-4

0
4

-1
0
3

4
fa

x 
9

7
2

-4
0

4
-1

0
3

6

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R
U

C
TI
O

N

C
o

p
yr

ig
h

t 
2

0
1

4

4
/1

7
/2

0
1

4
 4

:5
9

:2
7

 P
M

2.10

1212

Site Plan

Schematic Design

M
c

La
n
e

 C
e

n
te

r 
o

f 
H

o
p

e
4
2
0
 W

e
st

 A
ve

n
u
e

 G
 |

 T
e

m
p

le
, 
TX

 7
6
5
0
4

04.08.2014

B
ru

c
e

 E
. 

W
o

o
d

y 
#

1
4

4
1

9

C
B
K

True North
SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0"1 Site Plan

0' 8' 16' 32' 64'

Revision Schedule

04.17.2014



H
H

 A
rc

h
ite

c
ts

, 
In

c
.

5
9

1
0
 N

o
rt
h

 C
e

n
tr
a

l E
xp

re
ss

w
a

y 
Su

ite
 1

2
0

0
D

a
lla

s,
 T

e
xa

s 
7

5
2

0
6

9
7

2
-4

0
4

-1
0
3

4
fa

x 
9

7
2

-4
0

4
-1

0
3

6

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R
U

C
TI
O

N

C
o

p
yr

ig
h

t 
2

0
1

4

4
/1

7
/2

0
1

4
 5

:0
0

:1
5

 P
M

6.00

1212

Perspective Views

Schematic Design

M
c

La
n
e

 C
e

n
te

r 
o

f 
H

o
p

e
4
2
0
 W

e
st

 A
ve

n
u
e

 G
 |

 T
e

m
p

le
, 
TX

 7
6
5
0
4

03.19.2014

B
ru

c
e

 E
. 

W
o

o
d

y 
#

1
4

4
1

9

C
h

e
c

ke
r

Note: For representational purposes only.

Revision Schedule

04.17.2014



Aerial Photo Comparison – 2012 & 2009 

Site Development (Aerial Photo – circa 12/2012) 

Site Development with Martha’s Kitchen (Aerial Photo circa 12/2009) 

mbaker
Polygon

mbaker
Polygon



80
3

30170
7

71
7

415

70
9

71
3

71
7

411

315
321

616

204

61
3

61
1

309

413

407

60
3

60
8

60
4

518

608

80
4

611

80
8 80

4

307

32370
4

70
8

71
6

71
8

409

71
8

71
2

70
8

501

513

70
5

70
7

71
1

71
7

601
605

71
6

71
8

70
3

60
2

60
8

61
2

61
6

604

61
1

61
5 60
2

60
6

61
0

500
60

7
60

9
61

7

520

517
519

60
4

60
8

61
2

402

415

61
3

410
420

60
1

318

70
5

300

316

W G AVE

W H AVE

S 9
TH

 ST

S 7
TH

 ST

S 1
1T

H 
ST

W F AVE

S 5
TH

 ST

Z-FY-13-37 Notification Map
Salvation Army

Transitional Shelter

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

Case
200' Buffer
Address

0 200 400
Feet

4/14/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker

















1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4663 

(Z-FY-13-37) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A 
TRANSITIONAL SHELTER OPERATED BY THE SALVATION ARMY, 
AND LOCATED AT 409, 410, 411, 413, 420 AND 501 WEST AVENUE G 
AND 708 AND 709 SOUTH 9TH STREET, TEMPLE, TEXAS; DECLARING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides 
for the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City 
Council to impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations 
indicate to be important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of 
adjacent property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, 
glare, offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which 
a permit is authorized;  

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the conditions, operation and location of property described as portions of lot 3, 
block 39, lot 1 and 2, block 62, lot 2, block 56 and lot 1, block 57, Original Town of Temple 
County, County of Bell, Texas, and addressed as 409, 410, 411, 413, 420 and 501 West Avenue 
G and 708 and 709 South 9th  Street, recommends that the City Council approve the application 
for this Conditional Use Permit for a transitional shelter; and 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required 
by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by the applicant 
concerning the proposed plans for operation of said establishment and has heard the comments 
and evidence presented by all persons supporting or opposing this application at said public 
hearing, and after examining the conditions, operation and the location of said establishment, 
finds that the proposed use of the premises substantially complies with the comprehensive plan 
and the area plan adopted by the City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit to allow a transitional 
shelter on portions of lot 3, block 39, lot 1 and 2, block 62, lot 2, block 56 and lot 1, block 57, 
Original Town of Temple County, County of Bell, Texas, and addressed as 409, 410, 411, 413, 
420 and 501 West Avenue G and 708 and 709 South 9th  Street, more fully described in Exhibits 
‘A’ & ‘B’ attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 



2 

Part 2: The owner/applicant, his employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 
hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and 
conditions of operation: 

A. Space must be provided inside the transitional shelter so that prospective and 
current residents are not required to wait on sidewalks or any other public right-
of-way; 

B. The transitional shelter must be equipped with a functioning central heating, 
ventilation and air conditioning system;  

C. The occupancy load and construction of the building must meet the most recent 
version of the International Fire Code and Building Code adopted by the City, 
including fire Safety requirements; 

D. A minimum of one shelter staff member must be present per 25 clients on-premise 
of the transitional shelter.  A minimum of one shelter staff member must be 
present at the shelter at all times; 

E. The transitional shelter shall be designed and operated in a manner that clients are 
provided temporary housing for period of up to one year; 

F. Occasional, unplanned short term stays that exceed the thirty days or one year 
normal stay by clients of emergency and transitional shelters shall not constitute a 
violation of this ordinance; 

G. That a Street Use License be submitted for review for the use of the on-street 
parking, if determined necessary; 

H. Substantial compliance to the submitted and attached site plan and building 
elevations shall be confirmed through review of Construction Documents; 

I. That no more than 7 employees shall be on-shift at any one time; 
J. Facility resources shall be scheduled and made available to clients in a manner 

that limits simultaneous occupancy; 
K. That off-street parking to accommodate a maximum employee shift shall be 

provided; and 
L. That the Director of Planning may be authorized to approve minor modifications 

to the site plan including the provision of off-street parking. 

Part 3: The Director of Planning is hereby directed to make the necessary changes to the 
City Zoning Map accordingly. 

Part 4: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 

Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of 
any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 



3 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of May, 
2014. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

05/01/14 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing submission of a new Storm Water 
Management Program (SWMP) to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:   TCEQ requires cities with populations less than 100,000 to submit an SWMP. 
The goal of the SWMP is to reduce pollution discharge to creeks, rivers and lakes. 

On January 17, 2008, Council authorized the submission of the City’s original 5-year SWMP. 

On December 13, 2013, TCEQ issued the final Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Phase 
2 Small MS4 Permit. The permit requires cities in Temple’s population classification to submit a new 
Storm Water Management Program within 6 months – a deadline of June 11, 2014. Failure to meet 
the deadline carries a risk of incurring fines.  

City staff developed a new 5-year plan for the SWMP with input from the Storm Water Stakeholders 
Committee. 

The SWMP plan addresses five categories specified by TCEQ: 

1) Public Education & Involvement
2) Illicit Discharge Detection & Elimination
3) Construction Site Storm Water Runoff Control
4) Post Construction Storm Water Management in areas of New Development and

Redevelopment
5) Pollution Prevention / Good Housekeeping for Municipal Operations



05/01/14 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

The SWMP incorporates City work that may eliminate or reduce pollutants discharging to natural 
waterways. The SWMP identifies 28 Best Management Practices (BMPs). An example of a BMP is 
street sweeping. Collecting silt, sand, trash and debris by street sweeping before these pollutants can 
enter a storm drain system and discharge into creeks is considered a BMP by both TCEQ and the 
Environmental Protection Agency.  

The SWMP includes measurable goals and has a 5-year implementation period as prescribed by 
TCEQ rules. The estimated cost to implement the currently proposed SWMP (pending TCEQ 
approval) is $94,911.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  The fiscal impact of this SWMP plan as currently proposed is estimated at 
$94,911.  Funding in the amount of $94,911 was adopted in the FY 2014 Operating Budget for the 
City’s Storm Water Management Program. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7310-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF A NEW STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM TO THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TECQ) requires cities 
with populations less than 100,000 to submit a Storm Water Management Program (SWMP) to 
reduce pollution discharge to creeks, rivers and lakes; 

Whereas, on January 17, 2008, City Council authorized the submission of the City’s 
original 5-year SWMP and on December 13, 2013, TCEQ issued the final Texas Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System Phase 2 Small MS4 Permit; 

Whereas, the permit requires cities in Temple’s population classification to submit a 
new SWMP within six months, with a deadline of June 11, 2014 – failure to meet this deadline 
carries a risk of incurring fines; 

Whereas, staff has developed a new 5-year plan for the SWMP with input from the 
Storm Water Stakeholders Committee – the plan addresses five categories specified by TCEQ, 
which includes: 

a) Public Education & Involvement;
b) Illicit Discharge Detection & Elimination;
c) Construction Site Storm Water Runoff Control;
d) Post Construction Storm Water Management in areas of new development

and redevelopment;
e) Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping for Municipal Operations;

Whereas, the SWMP incorporates City work that may eliminate or reduce pollutants 
discharging to natural waterways, identifies 28 Best Management Practices, includes 
measureable goals and has a 5-year implementation period as prescribed by TCEQ rules; 

Whereas, funding in the amount of $94,911 was adopted in the fiscal year 2014 for 
the Storm Water Management Program; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the submission of a new Storm Water 
Management Program to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 



2 

Part 2: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute any documents 
which may be necessary for this submission, after approval as to form by the City Attorney. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of May, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

05/01/14 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2013-2014. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2013-2014 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount of budget amendments is $13,730,068.2 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2014 BUDGET

May 1, 2014

APPROPRIATIONS

ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-2011-521-2136 Public Safety Expenditures 3,500$   

110-0000-313-0331 Reserved for Public Safety 3,500$   

Appropriating Public Safety funds for the purchase of the Fast Track program.

110-0000-411-0111 Ad Valorem Taxes - Current Year 99,167$   

110-1500-515-6532 Contingency 99,167$   

Reduces current year property taxes and contingency in FY 2014.  An error was made in the

certified roll for FY 2014.  The added value for a property was added to the City's tax roll, 

and it should have been added to the Reinvestment Zone No. 1's tax roll.

240-4600-551-2217 Signage/Banners 18,510$   

240-0000-461-0841 Donations 13,650$   

240-0000-358-1110 Hotel/Motel Unallocated Fund Balance 4,860$   

Appropriating funds to purchase 240 banners and associated brackets.  The banners will be located

in the downtown area, Mayborn CAC area, TMED area, Scott & White, 31st Street, and Birdcreek area.

The Chamber of Commerce is donating $13,650 to partially fund the banner project.  The remaining

amount needed will be funded from Hotel/Motel Unallocated Fund Balance

110-2057-521-2514 Travel & Training 9,271$   
110-0000-442-0720 Police Revenue 9,271$   

Appropriating the annual allocation from the Local Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education

(LEOSE) account for expenditures related to continuing education.

562-5200-535-6947 101097 T-B WWTP Reclaimed Effluent Water Line 12,354,596$  

562-5200-535-6532 Contingency 445,404$   

562-0000-373-0422 Bond Proceeds 12,800,000$ 

562-0000-311-0112 Reserved for Encumbrance - prior year 773,150$   
562-5200-535-6947 101097 T-B WWTP Reclaimed Effluent Water Line 773,150$      

Appropriating the Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2014, related to the Reclaimed Effluent Water Line

at the Temple-Belton WWTP.  The budget adjustment also corrects a carry forward entry from FY 2013

to FY 2014 for an outstanding PO at the end of the fiscal year.

260-3500-552-6316 100629 1st Street Sidewalk Improvements Phase II {STEP grant} 13,235$   

260-0000-490-2582 Transfer In - CO Bonds 13,235$   

361-9100-591-8161 Transfer Out - Grant Fund 13,235$   
361-3400-531-2588 100681 NW Loop 363 13,235$   

Appropriating additional funds needed to process change order #3 with Legends Landscapes

in the amount of $16,504.04.  Funding in the amount o $3,270 is currently available.  The change 

order is to furnish and install pedestrian signal components (HAWK system).

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 13,730,068$  13,730,068$ 

1



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2014 BUDGET

May 1, 2014

APPROPRIATIONS

ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 498,072$      

Added to Contingency Sweep Account 89,700          
Carry forward from Prior Year -                
Taken From Contingency (280,903)       

Net Balance of Contingency Account 306,869$      

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 40,000$        

Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                
Taken From Judgments & Damages (10,831)         

Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 29,169$        

Beginning Compensation Contingency 288,000$      

Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency (216,697)       
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 71,303$        

Net Balance Council Contingency 407,341$      

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$              

Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                

Taken From Budget Sweep -                

Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                  

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$        

Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                
Taken From Contingency (49,574)         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 426$             

Beginning Compensation Contingency 50,000$        

Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency (23,500)         
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 26,500$        

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 26,926$        

2



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2014 BUDGET

May 1, 2014

APPROPRIATIONS

ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 29,107$        

Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                
Carry forward from Prior Year -                
Taken From Contingency (3,745)           

Net Balance of Contingency Account 25,362$        

Beginning Compensation Contingency 7,500$          

Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency (7,500)           
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                  

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 25,362$        

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$              

Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                
Carry forward from Prior Year -                
Taken From Contingency -                

Net Balance of Contingency Account -$              

Beginning Compensation Contingency 7,500$          

Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency (7,500)           
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                  

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency -$              

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$              

Carry forward from Prior Year 237,553        
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                
Taken From Contingency (217,954)       
Net Balance of Contingency Account 19,599$        

3



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7311-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2013-2014 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, on the 29th day of August, 2013, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2013-2014 fiscal year; and 

 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2013-2014 City Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council approves amending the 2013-2014 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of May, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson  Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

05/01/14 
Item #5(A) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing the annexation for a 49.979 tract of land located between South Pea Ridge Road (to the 
west) and Old Waco Road (to the east), abutting the city limits boundary to the north situated within 
the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, known as the Plains at Riverside. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This annexation tracks with rezoning case Z-FY-14-23, a zoning request from 
Agricultural (Ag – the default zoning district upon annexation) to SF-2 (Single-Family Two), the First 
Reading for which will also occur at the May 1, 2014 City Council meeting.  

3 Nex-Gen Devel LLC filed a petition on February 27, 2014 seeking voluntary annexation of 49.979 
acres into the City of Temple. Voluntary annexation is governed by Section 43.028 of the Texas Local 
Government Code and applies only to the annexation of an area that is: 

1. Less than one-half mile in width,
2. Contiguous to the annexing municipality, and
3. Vacant and without residents or on which fewer than three qualified voters reside.

On March 20, 2014, the City Council adopted a resolution directing City staff to create a Municipal 
Service Plan and public hearing schedule to consider the annexation of the subject property.  The first 
and second public hearings to present the Municipal Service Plan and to provide an opportunity for 
public comments occurred on April 3rd and 4th, respectively. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Future development and improvements to the property will add value to the Ad 
Valorem Tax Base. The Municipal Service Plan does not contain any proposal to extend water or 
wastewater services to the area, or any other new physical facilities to serve this small tract. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Municipal Service Plan 
Field Notes  
Survey 
Location Map 
Ordinance  



1 

CITY OF TEMPLE 
ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN—VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION 

PLAINS AT RIVERSIDE 

For a 49.979 tract of land located between South Pea Ridge Road (to the west) and Old Waco Road 
(to the east), abutting the city limits boundary to the north situated within the Nancy Chance Survey, 
Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas and being more particularly described as Exhibit “A” (Field Notes) 
and depicted as Exhibit “B” (Survey) of the Annexation Ordinance (2014-####). 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF ANNEXATION 

1. POLICE PROTECTION

The City will provide protection to the newly-annexed tract at the same or similar of service now being 
provided to other areas of the City, with the same or similar topography, land use and population 
density. 

2. FIRE PROTECTION AND AMBULANCE SERVICE

The City will provide fire protection from Station 3 to the newly-annexed area at the same or similar 
level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar topography, land 
use and population density. The City will provide First Responder services through its Fire Department 
and contract for emergency medical services (EMS) through the Scott & White Hospital System. 

3. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION

Upon payment of any required deposits and the agreement to pay lawful service fees and charges, 
solid waste collection will be provided to the newly-annexed area to the extent that the City has access 
to the area to be serviced.  Private contractors currently providing sanitation collecting services in the 
area may continue to do so for up to two years. 

4. MAINTENANCE OF WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES

Any and all water or wastewater facilities owned or maintained by the City at the time of the proposed 
annexation shall continue to be maintained by the City. Any and all water or wastewater facilities which 
may be acquired subsequent to the annexation of the proposed area shall be maintained by the City, 
to the extent of its ownership. Any and all water or wastewater facilities outside the extent of the 
ownership of the City, and owned by other water or wastewater providers shall continue to be allowed 
to provide those services to the newly-annexed tract. 

5. MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND STREETS

Any and all public roads, streets or alleyways which have been dedicated to the City, or which are 
owned by the City, shall be maintained to the same degree and extent that other roads, streets and 
alleyways are maintained in areas with similar topography, land use and population density. Any and 
all lighting of roads, streets and alleyways which may be positioned in a right-of-way, roadway or utility 
company easement shall be maintained by the applicable utility company servicing the City, pursuant 
to the rules, regulations and fees of such utility. 



 2 

6. MAINTENANCE OF PUBLIC PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS 
 
The City Council is not aware of the existence of any public parks, playgrounds or swimming pools now 
located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such parks, playgrounds or swimming 
pools do exist and are public facilities, the City, will maintain such areas to the same extent and degree 
that it maintains parks, playgrounds and swimming pools and other similar areas of the City now 
incorporated in the City. 

 
7. MAINTENANCE OF MUNICIPALLY-OWNED FACILITY, BUILDING OR MUNICIPAL 

SERVICE 
 
The City Council is not aware of the existence of any publicly-owned facility, building or other municipal 
service now located in the area proposed for annexation. In the event any such publicly-owned facility, 
building or municipal service does exist and are public facilities, the City will maintain such areas to the 
same extent and degree that it maintains publicly-owned facilities, buildings or municipal services of 
the City now incorporated in the City. 

 
8. INSPECTIONS 
 

The City will provide building inspection services upon approved building permits from the City to the 
newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the 
City with the same or similar topography, land use and population density. 

 
9. CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 

The City will provide code enforcement services to the newly-annexed tract at the same or similar level 
of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar topography, land use 
and population density. 
 

10. MOWING 
 

The City will provide right-of-way mowing services adjacent to the newly-annexed tract at the same or 
similar level of service now being provided to other areas of the City with the same or similar 
topography, land use and population density. 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
 

1. POLICE PROTECTION, FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
 
The City Council finds and determines it to be unnecessary to acquire or construct any capital 
improvements for the purposes of providing police protection, fire protection, or emergency medical 
services. The City Council finds and determines that it has at the present time adequate facilities to 
provide the same type, kind and level of protection and service which is presently being administered 
to other areas already incorporated in the City with the same or similar topography, land use and 
population density. 
 

2. ROADS AND STREETS 
 
The City will undertake to provide the same degree of road and street lighting as is provided in areas 
of the same or similar topography, land use and population density within the present corporate limits 
of the City. Maintenance of properly dedicated roads and streets will be consistent with the maintenance 
provided by the City to other roads and streets in areas of similar topography, land use and sub 



 3 

development of the annexed property. Developers will be required, pursuant to the ordinances of the 
City to provide internal and peripheral streets and to construct those streets in accordance with the 
specifications required by the City for the properly dedicated street. City participation in capital 
expenditures will be in accordance with city policies. 

 
3. WATER AND WASTEWATER FACILITIES 

 
The City of Temple has water facilities within the boundaries of the voluntary annexation, and proposes 
no other extension of water facilities to the area, taking into consideration the existing land use, and 
topography and population density relative to areas within the existing City Limits which do not have 
water services. 

 
Currently, there are no wastewater treatment providers within the boundaries of the voluntary 
annexation and property owners rely on on-site sewage facilities (septic systems). Other areas of the 
City of Temple with similar topography, land use, and population density as those found in the 
boundaries of the voluntary annexation also rely on on-site sewage facilities for wastewater 
infrastructure. For this reason and in accordance with Local Government Code Section 43.056(g), the 
City proposes no extensions of wastewater facilities within the boundaries of the voluntary 
annexation.  

 
 4. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this service plan, a landowner within the newly annexed area 
will not be required to fund capital improvements as necessary for municipal services in a manner 
inconsistent with Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
landowner. 

 

SPECIFIC FINDINGS 
 
The City Council finds and determines that this proposed Service Plan will not provide any fewer 
services, and it will not provide a lower level of service in the area proposed to be annexed than were 
in existence in the proposed area at the time immediately preceding the annexation process. 
 
Because of the differing characteristics of topography, land utilization and population density, the 
service levels which may ultimately be provided in the newly annexed area may differ somewhat from 
services provided in other areas of the City. These differences are specifically dictated because of 
differing characteristics of the property and the City will undertake to perform consistent with this 
contract so as to provide the newly-annexed area with the same type, kind and quality of service 
presently enjoyed by the citizens of the City who reside in areas of the same or similar topography, land 
utilization and population density. 
 
 APPROVED ON THIS __________DAY OF _______________, 2014. 
 
         City of Temple, Texas 
 
         ________________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
         ATTEST: 
         ________________________________________ 
         City Secretary 









POISON OAK RD

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
DS P

EA
 RI

DG
E R

D

POISON OAK RD

Voluntary Annexation Plains at Riverside Location Map

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
0 100200

FeetCase 4/20/2014
City of Temple GIS



1

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4656 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, ANNEXING AN 
APPROXIMATELY 49.979 TRACT OF LAND LOCATED BETWEEN SOUTH PEA 
RIDGE ROAD AND OLD WACO ROAD, ABUTTING THE CITY LIMITS 
BOUNDARY AND SITUATED WITHIN THE NANCY CHANCE SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 5, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, ALSO KNOWN AS THE PLAINS AT 
RIVERSIDE AND APPROVING A MUNICIPAL SERVICE PLAN; FINDING THAT 
ALL NECESSARY AND REQUIRED LEGAL CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN 
SATISFIED; PROVIDING THAT SUCH AREA SHALL BECOME A PART OF THE 
CITY AND THAT THE OWNERS AND INHABITANTS THEREOF, IF ANY, SHALL 
BE ENTITLED TO THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF OTHER CITIZENS AND BE 
BOUND BY THE ACTS AND ORDINANCES NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE 
HEREAFTER ADOPTED; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, the City of Temple is a home-rule city authorized by State law and the City 
Charter to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 

Whereas, two separate public hearings where conducted prior to consideration of this 
ordinance in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code and the hearings 
were conducted and held not more than forty nor less than twenty days prior to the institution of 
annexation proceedings; 

Whereas, notice of the public hearings was published in a newspaper of general circulation 
in the City and the territory proposed to be annexed not more than twenty nor less than ten days 
prior to the public hearings; 

Whereas, the property to be annexed is contiguous with and adjacent to the City and not 
within the boundaries of any other city; and  

Whereas, the City is able to provide all services to the property to be annexed according to 
the service plan attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: All of the above premises are found to be true and correct and are incorporated into 
the body of this ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2: The property consisting of approximately 49.979 acres of land located between 
South Pea Ridge Road and Old Waco Road, described in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto, is hereby 
annexed and brought within the corporate limits of the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, and 
is made an integral part thereof. 



2

Part 3: The service plan submitted in accordance with Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 
Government Code is hereby approved as part of this ordinance, made a part hereof and attached 
hereto as Exhibit "B." 

Part 4: The owners and inhabitants of the Property herein annexed shall be entitled to all of 
the rights and privileges of other citizens and property owners of said City and are hereby bound by 
all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and effect and all those which may be 
hereafter adopted. 

Part 5: The official map and boundaries of the City of Temple are heretofore adopted and 
amended be and hereby amended so as to include the annexed Property as part of the City of 
Temple. 

Part 6: The annexed Property shall, in compliance with the Zoning Ordinance of the City of 
Temple, be zoned as SF-2 (Single-Family Two) until permanent zoning is established by the City 
Council. 

Part 7: The annexed Property shall be included in, and become a part of, the City of Temple 
City Council Election District Number 4. 

Part 8: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Part 9: If the taking of any territory annexed by this ordinance is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid and/or illegal, it shall not affect the balance of the property 
annexed and attempted to be annexed, and that property shall remain as part of the City of Temple, 
Texas. It is the intent of this ordinance that any territory that is not lawful for the City to incorporate 
be excluded from this annexation and that such exclusion be documented by having a qualified 
surveyor correct the property description of the annexed area to conform to the Council's intention 
and to insure that the boundary description closes. 

Part 10: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 

Part 11: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of May, 
2014. 



3

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second and Final Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

05/01/14 
Item #5(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 7 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Mark Baker, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING- Z-FY-14-23:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance to take action on permanent zoning upon annexation of a tract of land consisting of a total 
49.979 +/- acres, where 42.440 +/- acres are proposed for Single-Family Two (SF-2) District and 
7.539 +/- acres are proposed for Office-2 (O-2) District as part of the proposed subdivision plat for 
The Plains at Riverside, located on the west side of the intersection of Old Waco Road and Riverside 
Trail. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its April 7, 2014 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend approval of the requested rezone from 
AG to AF-2 & O-2 with the following recommendations: 

1. Approve 42.440 +/- acres for SF-2 as requested and,
2. Approve 7.539 +/- acres for PD-O-2 and prohibit residential uses.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 

Based on the following discussion, staff recommends approval for a rezone from AG to SF-2 and O-2 
for the following reasons: 

1. While the proposed zoning partially complies with the overall Future Land Use Plan, it
complies with the existing Suburban Commercial designation but is also consistent with
the adjacent property to the north and anticipated development of the surrounding area
which is consistent with Suburban Residential;

2. The request is in partial compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan
3. The request is consistent with the anticipated development of the area and the

surrounding area where single family development is consistent with the Future Land
Use Plan and;

4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

ITEM SUMMARY:  According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Plan, the 
subject property, being a total 49.979 +/- acres, is within both the designated Agricultural/Rural district 
and the Suburban Commercial district.  The Agricultural/Rural district is intended for those areas 
within the City limits that do not yet have adequate public facilities and services and therefore, may 
have on-site utilities.  On the other hand, the Suburban Commercial District is for office, retail and  



05/01/14 
Item #5(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 7 

service uses adjacent to and abutting residential neighborhoods and in other areas where the 
community’s image and aesthetic value is to be promoted.  Additional discussion can be found 
regarding the consistency with the Future Land User Plan later in this staff report. 

Although it is anticipated the SF-2-zoned portion of the property will be developed with detached 
single-family residences, there are a number of uses that are permitted by right.  Those uses include 
but are not limited to: 

Residential uses Nonresidential uses 
Family or Group Home Farm or Ranch 
Industrialized Housing  Park or Playground 

Fire Station 
Prohibited uses include Housing and Urban Development (HUD-Code) manufactured homes and 
land lease communities, duplexes, zero lot line dwelling, halfway houses and apartments. All 
commercial and industrial uses are prohibited, except these uses allowed by an approved conditional 
use permit (temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, a petroleum or gas well or a cemetery, 
crematory or mausoleum). 

The O-2-zoned portion of the property is anticipated to be developed with non-residential uses. There 
are a number of uses that are permitted by right.  Those uses include but are not limited to: 

Residential uses Nonresidential uses 
Single-Family (detached/attached) Most retail and service uses 
Industrialized Housing  Offices 
Duplex Restaurant (without drive-thru) 
Triplex Drug Store / Pharmacy 

 Apartments Hotel / Motel 

Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, zero lot line 
dwelling and All commercial and industrial uses are prohibited, except these uses allowed by an 
approved conditional use permit (temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, a petroleum or gas well 
or a cemetery, crematory or mausoleum). 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 
Site Agriculture/ Rural &    AG (upon Annexation) Undeveloped 

Suburban Commercial 
North            Suburban Residential SF-2 Undeveloped 

Suburban Commercial 
South            Agriculture/ Rural &    ETJ         Scattered SF uses on acreage  

Suburban Commercial 
East Agriculture/Rural  ETJ   Scattered SF uses on acreage 

Suburban Commercial 
West          Rural Estate      ETJ    Scattered SF uses on acreage 



Suburban 
05/01/14 

Item #5(B) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 3 of 7 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partial 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Partial 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The property is within both the Agricultural/Rural and the Suburban Commercial districts.  The 
applicant proposes 42.440 +/- acres for single-family residential development.  

This request is consistent with the anticipated development of the property to the immediate north 
and the anticipated growth of the Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) corridor between South Pea 
Ridge Road and Old Waco southward toward Old Waco Road’s intersection with I-35.  The 26.88 +/- 
acres for Glynn Cummings’ rezone request was approved by 2nd reading on March 6th for SF-2, and is 
the first of anticipated single family development in the immediate incorporated area. The current 
proposal is the first of single-family development within an ETJ corridor east of South Pea Ridge 
Road and west of Old Waco Road southward toward I-35.  While the proposed rezone is not 
consistent with the current Future Land Use Plan AG district, the requested 42.440 +/- acres to SF-2 
is consistent with the anticipated development of the area and the surrounding area where single 
family development is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan where Suburban Residential is 
identified. If the rezone is approved, the Future Land Use Plan will need to be updated. 

In contrast, the applicant is additionally requesting that 7.739 +/- acres be rezoned to O-2.  The 
Suburban Commercial district on the other hand, is identified along the Old Waco Road corridor in 
both the City and ETJ areas of this corridor all the way to where Old Waco Road intersects with I-35 
and the anticipated alignment of the “Outer Loop”. The Suburban Commercial district is appropriate 
for office, retail and service uses adjacent to and abutting residential neighborhoods and in other 
areas where the community’s image and aesthetic value is to be promoted. 

It should be noted that although the request for O-2 is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, Old 
Waco Road is identified as the “Outer Loop”.  The “Outer Loop” is proposed to be widened with a 163’ 
right-of-way (ROW) in the 1st phase of a Transportation Capital Improvements Plan (TCIP) project 
extending down to Jupiter Drive.  The depth of the proposed O-2 portion ranges between 229.38’ and 
240.46’.  The acreage of the requested O-2 zoning designation is consistent with the recent Glynn 
Cummings rezone which retained acreage for a future non-residential zoning along Old Waco Road. 
It is from that case that the proposed acreage along Old Waco Road is adequate for development of  



05/01/14 
Item #5(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 7 

uses within a non-residential zoning district which are consistent with Suburban Commercial district 
as well as meet needed dedication requirements. The dedication requirements will be addressed 
during the subdivision plat stage of development. Therefore the request for a rezone to 7.539 +/- 
acres to Office-2 (O-2) is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The property has frontage along South Pea Ridge Road and Old Waco Road. Although South Pea 
Ridge Road is currently identified as a collector, several alignments are being considered and may be 
built to minor arterial standards when final right-of-way dedication and design is completed in the 
future. The Thoroughfare Plan will be required to be updated if South Pea Ridge Road is reclassified. 
Old Waco Road has been identified as the “Outer-Loop” and will be developed with a 163’ ROW. 
ROW acquisition is on-going and if necessary, any needed ROW adjacent to this tract will be 
addressed at the platting stage of review. 

In light of discussion as a result of the recent Glynn Cummings’ rezone abutting to the north, it should 
be noted that City staff is in the process of comprehensively evaluating whether these roads need to 
move up the Transportation Capital Improvements Plan (TCIP) priority list due to proposed 
development in the area. Although these portions of South Pea Ridge and Old Waco Road are not on 
the immediate horizon for funding or the current Transportation Capital Improvements Plan (TCIP) 
project list, they are being evaluated by staff and the City Council. While the paved roadway surfaces 
are in place, neighborhood testimony from the recent public meetings have found that the paved 
surface may be inadequate and pose public safety hazards if residential development occurs without 
adequate upgrading to the surrounding roads, specifically South Pea Ridge Road, Poison Oak Road 
and Old Waco Road.    

The Thoroughfare Plan (see attached) shows Poison Oak Road as a proposed minor arterial, South 
Pea Ridge Road as an existing collector and Old Waco Road as the Outer Loop. Staff has found that 
none of the roads in the immediate area are funded through 2019 on the Transportation Capital 
Improvements Plan (TCIP) project listing.  However, portions of the Outer Loop from West Adams 
down to about Jupiter are on the list.  Per Unified Development Code (UDC) Sec. 8.5.1(Perimeter 
Streets), the developer will be responsible at the platting stage for right-of-way dedication for adjacent 
street improvements.  

The following shows existing and proposed ROW and pavement widths for Poison Oak, South Pea 
Ridge and Old Waco Road. 

Existing Roadway Conditions 

    Right- of-Way Pavement Width 
Poison Oak Road 70’ 16’ 8” (Varies) 
South Pea Ridge Road 55’ 18’ 4” (Varies) 
Old Waco Road 70’ 20’ (Varies) 



05/01/14 
Item #5(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 7 

Proposed Roadway Conditions 

    Right-of-Way Pavement Width 
Poison Oak Road 70’ 49’ 
South Pea Ridge Road 75’ 49’ 
Old Waco Road 163’ 106’ with a 40’ median 

The Thoroughfare Plan identifies the proposed alignment of Poison Oak (a proposed minor arterial) 
as crossing diagonally across the subject parcel.  The proposed preliminary plat has not addressed 
this alignment and further review by Design Review Committee (DRC) is on-hold pending the 
outcome of annexation and this rezone.  Any alternatives will require an amendment to the 
Thoroughfare Plan and would need to go before the Planning and Zoning Commission and City 
Council before being considered as part of any anticipated plat. Current as well as alternative 
alignments of Poison Oak have been discussed however future alignment also needs to be resolved 
prior to the plat moving forward.   

As previously noted, the preliminary plat for the Plains at Riverside and any future subdivision 
development related to the Glynn Cummings property is forthcoming, it is anticipated the combination 
will add approximately 300 new homes to the area. 

In conclusion, roadway alignments are physically in place for Poison Oak Road, South Pea Ridge and 
Old Waco Road, the roads are clearly not built to their current or proposed standards; the request 
therefore is in partial in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan.  However, roadway alignment and 
design are platting issues and will be addressed further at the platting stage.  

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property by a 15” line on the northern property boundary. Water is 
available through an 8” waterline in South Pea Ridge Road and a 3” in Old Waco Road.   

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
According to the Trails Master Plan Map, no trails have been identified along South Pea Ridge Road. 
However, a proposed Community-Wide spine trail is proposed within Old Waco Road.  Trail and 
sidewalks will be addressed at the platting stage of review. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standard residential setbacks in the SF-2 district are: 

Min Lot Size  5,000 S.F  
Min Lot Width 50’ 
Min Lot Depth 100’ 
Front  25’ 
Side           5’ 
Side (corner)     15’ 
Rear 10’ 



05/01/14 
Item #5(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 6 of 7 

Standard non-residential setbacks in the O-2 district are: 

Min Lot Size  N/A  
Min Lot Width N/A 
Min Lot Depth N/A 
Front  25’ (Special Setbacks may apply per UDC Section 4.4) 
Side           5’ (Special Setbacks may apply per UDC Section 4.4) 
Side (corner)     10’  (Special Setbacks may apply per UDC Section 4.4) 
Rear  0’  (Special Setbacks may apply per UDC Section 4.4) 

Per UDC Section 8.2.3, sidewalks are required on one side of the road for collector streets. The 
sidewalk will be installed at the time of development, and will be noted on the plat.   

Additional Development Regulations include but not limited to: 

* A minimum 10’ rear setback is required where a non-residential use abuts a residential zoning
district or use (UDC Section 4.4.4.F3) and,

* A residential access drive is prohibited onto arterial streets (UDC Section 7.2.4A).

General provisions for buffering and screening are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions 
include but not limited to: 

* Evergreen hedges with a minimum planted height of six feet, placed on 36-inch centers or,
fences and walls constructed of wood , masonry, stone or pre-cast concrete from 6 to 8 feet in
height above the  adjacent grade (UDC Section 7.7.4),

* Refuse containers are to be located in the side or rear of the property and screened from view
per UDC Section 7.7.6, and

* Outdoor storage is permitted in the O-2 zoning district, where the storage area is situated
behind the principal building in the rear half of the property and where a solid wood or masonry
fence screens the outdoor storage from public view.  Such wood or masonry fence must be at
least one foot higher than the stored material (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1).

PUBLIC NOTICE: Eleven notices, 4 within the City and 7 within the ETJ, for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property 
as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday April 22, 2014 at 12:00 PM, no notices 
have been received. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on March 26, 2013, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 



05/01/14 
Item #5(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 7 of 7 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Localized area of the Thoroughfare Plan 
Utility Map 
Notification Map  
Ordinance



 

Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site:  Undeveloped – From Old Waco Road Looking West (ETJ) 
 

 

 
 

Site:  Undeveloped – From South Pea Ridge Road Looking East (ETJ) 



 

 
 

East:  Scattered Residences on Acreage (ETJ) 
 

 

 
 

West:  Undeveloped (ETJ) 
 

 



 
 

North: Undeveloped (SF-2 & AG) 
 

 
 

 
 

South:  Scattered Residences on Acreage (ETJ) 



25
66

25
71

27
07

27
75

26
16

AG

TRACT B

TRACT C

TRACT D

TRACT E

32.02 AC

2674-A

2676-A

2677-A

2674-A

2674-A

POISON OAK RD

Z-FY-14-23 Zoning & Location Map S. Pea Ridge &
Old Waco Rd.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 300 600
Feet

3/31/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker

mbaker
Text Box
Proposed     SF-2

mbaker
Text Box
Proposed     O-2



POISON OAK RD

WILD BOYS RUN

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

WI
LD

 BU
CK

 R
UN

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

WIND CHIME WAY

POISON OAK RD

µ

Z-FY-14-23 Rezone
AG (Initial)  to SF-2 & O-2

Old Waco Road
& Riverside Trail

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

010020050
Feet

3/31/2014
City of Temple GIS



Localized Area of the Thoroughfare Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

15"

18"

10
"

6"

8"

3"

24
"

2"

Z-FY-14-23 Utility Map S. Pea Ridge and Old Waco Rd.
West of Riverside Drive

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case

G Fire Hydrant
Sewer Line

Water Line 0 250 500125
Feet

3/31/2014
City of Temple GIS



25
66

25
71

27
07

27
75

25
06

7211

26
16

AG

TRACT B

TRACT C

TRACT D

TRACT E

TRACT F

32.02 AC

2817-A
2674-A

2672-A
2671-A

2659-A

2676-B

2676-A

2677-A

2674-A

2676-A

2674-A

2673-A

2817-A

POISON OAK RD

POISON OAK RD

Z-FY-14-23
Notification Map

AG to SF-2 & O-2
S. Pea Ridge &
Old Waco Rd.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 400 800
Feet

3/14/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4657 

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-23) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING A PERMANENT ZONING UPON ANNEXATION OF A TRACT OF 
LAND CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 49.979 ACRES, WHERE 42.440 
ACRES ARE PROPOSED AS SINGLE-FAMILY TWO (SF-2) DISTRICT AND 
7.539 ACRES ARE PROPOSED AS OFFICE-2 (O-2) DISTRICT, AS PART OF THE 
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR THE PLAINS AT RIVERSIDE, LOCATED 
ON THE WEST SIDE OF THE INTERSECTION OF OLD WACO ROAD AND 
RIVERSIDE TRAIL; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a permanent zoning upon annexation of a tract of land 

consisting of a total of 49.979 acres, where 42.440 acres are proposed as Single-Family Two (SF-2) 
District and 7.539 acres are proposed as Office-2 (O-2) District as part of the proposed subdivision 
plat for The Plains at Riverside, located on the west side of the intersection of Old Waco Road and 
Riverside Trail, and more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for 
all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes to 
the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any 
such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so 
ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 

is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of May, 
2014. 
  



2 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
        _________________________________ 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

05/01/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner  

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – A-FY-14-04:  Hold a public hearing 
to consider an Ordinance authorizing abandonment and conveyance of all of the alley located in 
Block 4, Rylander Addition, on the east side of North 12th Street, between East Central Avenue and 
East Adams Avenue, and reserving a public drainage and utility easement in the entire abandoned 
right-of-way. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 

Staff recommends approval of the applicant’s requested alley abandonment as submitted and 
described in the item description.  

ITEM SUMMARY:  Lloyd Thomas requests this alley abandonment on behalf of property owner, Ham 
& McCreight Supply, Inc., to allow redevelopment of this block.  Ham & McCreight Supply, Inc. owns 
the property on both sides of the subject alley.   

Staff contacted all utility providers, including the Public Works Department, regarding the proposed 
alley abandonment.  Oncor Electric Delivery and AT&T Texas have existing service lines in the alley. 
Utility providers do not object to the requested alley abandonment as long as a utility easement is 
reserved to allow access to existing service lines.  Oncor is agreeable to making arrangements with 
the developer of the property to remove or relocate existing facilities. 

Staff requests a public drainage and utility easement in the entire abandoned rights-of-way to protect 
existing service lines in the subject alley.   

The applicant will not be able to construct buildings within the abandoned alley right-of-way unless 
existing service lines are relocated to another location. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  If approved, the applicants will be allowed to purchase the abandoned alley rights-
of-way at fair market value.  Fair market value will be determined by a broker’s opinion of value, 
which will be obtained prior to the sale of the proposed abandoned right-of-way. 

ATTACHMENTS:   
Abandonment Exhibit 
Ordinance







1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4658 

(A-FY-14-04) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZES THE ABANDONMENT AND CONVEYANCE OF 
ALL OF THE ALLEY, LOCATED IN BLOCK 4, RYLANDER ADDITION, 
ON THE EAST SIDE OF NORTH 12TH STREET, BETWEEN EAST 
CENTRAL AVENUE AND EAST ADAMS AVENUE AND RESERVING A 
PUBLIC DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT IN THE ENTIRE 
ABANDONED RIGHT-OF-WAY; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the owner of Block 4, Rylander Addition, Ham & McCreight Supply, Inc., 
requests abandonment of the alley through Block 4 to allow redevelopment of this block; 

Whereas, the alley is approximately 200.02 feet in length and approximately 20 feet in 
width and is located on the east side of North 12th Street , between East Central Avenue and East 
Adams Avenue; 

Whereas, staff has contacted all utility providers, including the Public Works 
Department, regarding the proposed alley abandonment and there are no objections to the 
requested alley abandonment as long as a utility easement is reserved to allow access to existing 
service lines; 

Whereas, staff requests a public drainage and utility easement in the entire abandoned 
right-of-way to protect services lines in the subject alley; 

Whereas, an appraisal of the alley is being obtained and upon payment to the City of the 
value set forth in the broker’s opinion, the alley will be conveyed to the property owner through 
a Deed Without Warranty; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
approve this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council abandons and conveys all of the alley, located in Block 4, 
Rylander Addition which is described as follows:  

Being a 0.138 acre or 6000 square feet of land described as a twenty feet (20’) 
wide alley running east and west through Block 4, Rylander Addition, an addition 
to the City of Temple, according to the map or plat of record in Volume 732, Page 
310, Deed of Records of Bell County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto. 



 
 2 

 
Part 2: The City Council reserves a public drainage and utility easement in the entire 

abandoned alley. 
 
 Part 3:  Upon payment of the value set forth in the appraisal, City Council authorizes the 
conveyance of the alley through a Deed Without Warranty. 
 

Part 4: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of May, 
2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ___________, 2014, by 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas. 
 
 
               
       Notary Public, State of Texas 



   
 
              

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

05/01/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-22: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezone from Agricultural District (AG) to Light Industrial District (LI) on 44.20 
+/- acres, situated in the Mercer Phelan Survey, Abstract 659 and the J. W. Christian Survey, 
Abstract 1070, Bell County, Texas, located at the southwest corner of NW Loop 363 and Pegasus 
Drive and addressed as 4222 Pegasus Drive. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its April 7, 2014 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 9 to 0, in accordance with staff’s recommendation to 
recommend approval from AG to LI.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 
 
Based on the following, staff recommends approval for a rezone from AG to LI for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The proposed zoning complies with the Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) which identifies 
this area as Industrial; 

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 
3. The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding uses; and   
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The subject property, see Exhibit A, is within the Industrial Districts according to 
the Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Plan. The Industrial District is intended for all the 
community’s manufacturing, warehousing / distribution and light industrial uses. The requested 
zoning to Light Industrial (LI) is in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
The site is within the Northwest Industrial Park. In “Industrial Park” areas, design standards (building 
materials, higher landscape surface area, screening of storage and loading areas, etc.) would be 
applied to uses visible from public rights-of-way and nearby character districts. Stand-alone industrial 
sites would be provided with adequate screening, buffering and performance standards related to 
noise, vibration, odor, glare, etc would be applied to protect nearby uses and character areas.  When 
platted and developed the site would be subject to the development standards in the industrial park 
as well as the general provisions of the Unified Development Code (UDC). 
 

 



 
05/01/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
While it is anticipated the property will be developed with industrial uses, there are a number of 
residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by right.  Those uses include but are not 
limited to: 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Boarding or Rooming House  Auto Storage 
Covent or Monastery    Boat Sales and Service 
Home for the aged    Truck Stop 
      Fuel sales 

 
Prohibited uses include Housing and Urban Development-Code (HUD-Code) manufactured homes 
and land lease communities, single-family residential use (detached and attached) and apartments. A 
number of uses are allowed by an approved conditional use permit (temporary asphalt concrete 
batching plants, sewage treatment plant or wrecking or salvage yard). 
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP      Zoning  Current Land Use 
 
Site  Industrial     AG   Undeveloped 
North            Industrial       LI   Undeveloped 
South            Industrial     LI                  Industrial Uses  
East           Suburban Commercial   LI & C    Industrial Uses  
West          Industrial     LI   Undeveloped 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The property is within the Industrial land use district.  The requested Light Industrial zoning (LI) 
designation complies with the Industrial Future Land Use Plan district.   

 



05/01/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The portion of the property under consideration has frontage along Pegasus Drive and located within 
the Northwest Industrial Park. Pegasus Drive has been identified as a collector. Collector streets 
normally require a 6’ sidewalk. Per UDC Section 8.2.3D, sidewalks are not required within UDC 
recognized industrial parks within Temple.  Therefore, this property would not require a sidewalk. 

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 12” and 15” sewer line that crosses the 
property. Water is available through an 18” waterline on the property’s southern boundary and a 12” 
waterline in Pegasus Drive.   

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
No trails have been identified according to the Trails Master Plan Map. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standard non-residential setbacks in the LI district are: 

Min Lot Size  N/A  
Min Lot Width N/A 
Min Lot Depth N/A 
Front   30’ from centerline (Special Setback per UDC Section 4.4.4.F.1D)  
Side            0’  (Special setback of 10’ adjacent to or abutting residential use or zoning 

district) 
Side (corner)     10’ 
Rear  0’ (Special setback of 10’ adjacent to or abutting residential use or zoning district) 

Per UDC Section 8.2.3D, since the property is within the Northwest Industrial Park, sidewalks are not 
required.   

PUBLIC NOTICE: Eight notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of Tuesday April 22, 2014 at 12:00 PM, one notice for approval has been received. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on March 26, 2014, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning and Location Map (Exhibit A) 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Localized area of the Thoroughfare Plan 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Notices 
Ordinance



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site:  Undeveloped - Looking South (AG) 

East:  Scattered Developed Industrial & Commercial Uses (LI &C) 



 
 

West:  Undeveloped (LI) 
 
 
 

 
 

North: Undeveloped (LI) 
 

 
 



 
 

South:  Scattered Developed Industrial Uses (LI) 



39
01

3888

37
6937

68
37

76

38
20

40
40

44
04

43
06

38
38

3510

38
08

37
12

11
35

0

12205

12310

LI

C
AG

LI

LI
LI

C

C

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1 ¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

1

1

2

1
1

1

2

2

1

1

2
1

1

1

3

2

11

660-H661-E

661-F

661-A

661-A

661-E

574-B 798-A

1158-B

661B-A 661B-A

1152-A

1153-C

4233-C

1153-A

1154-A

1150-E
1150-D

1152-A

1153-C

1153-A

1158-A

1156-E

1155B-B

1155A-E

1155A-A

1155A-A1155A-C

1155A-C

1155A-C

1155A-C PE
GA

SU
S D

R

N 3
RD

 ST

NW H K DODGEN LOOP

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N 
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 D

R

GRANITE DR

N 
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 35

Z-FY-14-22
Zoning and Location Map SW Corner Loop 363

& Pegasus Rd.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 350 700
Feet

2/28/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker



PE
GA

SU
S D

R

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N 3
RD

 ST

NW H K DODGEN LOOP

RA
NG

E R
D N 

GE
NE

RA
L B

RU
CE

 D
R

GRANITE DR

NE H K DODGEN LOOP

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N 
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 D

R

µ

Z-FY-14-22 Rezone
AG to LI

SW Corner Loop 363
& Pegasus Rd.

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 300 600150
Feet

2/25/2014
City of Temple GIS



Localized Area of the Thoroughfare Plan 

 
Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



G

G

G

G

G

12
"

15"

18"

12
"

6"

14
"

6"

6"
6"

6"

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

NW H K DODGEN LOOP

Z-FY-14-22 Utility Map
AG to LI

SW Corner Loop 363
& Pegasus Rd

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case

G Fire Hydrant
Sewer Line

Water Line
Expressway
Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial
Proposed K-TUTS
Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Conceptual Collector

0 300 600150
Feet 2/25/2014

City of Temple GIS



39
01

3888

37
6937

68
37

76

38
20

40
40

44
04

43
06

38
38

3510

38
08

37
12

11
35

0

12205

12310

LI

C
AG

LI

LI
LI

C

C

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1 ¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

1

1

2

1
1

1

2

2

1

1

2
1

1

1

3

2

11

660-H661-E

661-F

661-A

661-A

661-E

574-B 798-A

1158-B

661B-A 661B-A

1152-A

1153-C

4233-C

1153-A

1154-A

1150-E
1150-D

1152-A

1153-C

1153-A

1158-A

1156-E

1155B-B

1155A-E

1155A-A

1155A-A1155A-C

1155A-C

1155A-C

1155A-C PE
GA

SU
S D

R

N 3
RD

 ST

NW H K DODGEN LOOP

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N 
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 D

R

GRANITE DR

N 
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 35

Z-FY-14-22
Notification Map

AG to LI
SW Corner Loop 363

& Pegasus Rd.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 350 700
Feet

3/5/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker





1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4659 

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-22) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT (LI) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 44.20 ACRES, SITUATED IN THE MERCER 
PHELAN SURVEY, ABSTRACT 659 AND THE J.W. CHRISTIAN 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT 1070, AND LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF NW LOOP 363 AND PEGASUS DRIVE, AND ADDRESSED 
AS 4222 PEGASUS DRIVE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) 
to Light Industrial District (LI) on approximately 44.20 acres, situated in the Mercer 
Phelan Survey, Abstract 659 and the J.W. Christian Survey, Abstract 1070, Bell 
County, Texas, located at the southwest corner of NW Loop 363 and Pegasus Drive and 
addressed as 4222 Pegasus Drive, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ 
and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
 



2 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 

May, 2014. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

   
 
            
   COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

05/01/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-24: Consider adopting an 
ordinance for a site plan review, amending Ordinance No. 2001-2748, originally approved March 1, 
2001 Planned Development (Neighborhood Service) District, and further amended by Ordinance No. 
2012-4519, March 15, 2012, on Lot 2, Block 1, Johnson Lone Star Properties Addition located at 
7950 SH 317. 
 
P&Z RECOMMENDATION:  At their April 7, 2014 meeting Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended unanimous approval (8 to 0) of the Planned Development Site Plan Amendment as 
submitted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 
 
Based on the following, staff recommends approval to amend the original Planned Development site 
plan to accommodate a second phase for the Amy’s Attic mini-storage facilities: 
 

1. An 8 foot fence is proposed adjacent to single-family residences. 
2. A natural 15 foot landscape buffer with trees will be preserved providing additional 

screening between the adjacent single-family residences.   
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The property (both Lots 1 and 2) were originally zoned PD-NS in 2001 and 2009, 
respectively, including a site plan, which is required by Code for Planned Development District 
projects.  The site plan was amended in 2012 by City Council approval.  The proposed site plan 
amendment would allow for Phase 2 of the Amy’s Attic development, which backs up to and is 
adjacent to about 300 feet of single-family residences at the rear part of the southern property line. 
 
Phase 2 would match the masonry for the buildings, the wrought iron fence and the State Highway 
317 landscaping approved as part of Phase 1 to the north.  Phase 2 will include an 8 foot wood fence 
and the preservation of a 15 foot natural area buffer for screening purposes adjacent to single-family 
residences. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 42 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out to 
property owners within 200-feet of the subject property.  As of Thursday April 17, 2014 at 12:00 PM, 3 
notices had been received recommending “Approval” (including the applicant’s response) of the site 
plan amendment and 4 recommending “Disapproval.”   



05/01/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposed Site and Landscape Plan 
Aerial Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning and Location Map  
Notification Map 
Letters from Neighbors 
Ord No 2001-2748 (original PD-NS Zoning) 
Ord No 2009-4332 (Lot 2 PD-NS Zoning) 
Ord No 2012-4519 (Site Plan Amendment)
Ordinance 







4/3/2014

1

Existing Amy’s Attic Facilities

Subject property (Phase 2 of Amy’s Attic development)



4/3/2014

2

Property to the North

Property to the East



4/3/2014

3

Property to East (immediately south of undeveloped property)

Property to South



4/3/2014

4

Example of Windmill Farms home to the west



91
8

91
2

90
8

90
4

82
4

82
0

81
6

81
2

80
8

80
4

72
4

72
0

716

708

71
17

19
72

3
80

3
80

7 8
11

81
5

81
9 8

23
90

3
90

7
91

1

91
2

90
8

904

82
8

82
4

82
0

81
2

80
8

80
4

72
8

72
4

72
0

71
6

71
2

70
8

70
4

62
6

62
2

61
6

823

82
79

03
90

79
11

91
5

91
9

91
5

91
1

90
7

90
3

82
7

82
3

81
5

81
1

80
7

80
3

72
7

72
3

71
9

71
5

71
1

70
7

70
3

62
7

62
3

61
9

61
5

61
1

60
7

709

70
7

70
3

61
9

61
5

61
1

711710

706

70
4

62
0

61
6

61
2609

611
613

610

80
72

78
32

79
50

80
64

81
32

AGSF-2

NS

NS

NS

2017-B

16230241453

41589

241454

332853

421317

421318

30812

409240
372155409239

372153
372154

409206

372176
372160

372157

372158

372159

372156

409241

409284
409254

409253

409166

372161

409249

409244

409252

409250

409245

409251

409246
409247

409248

372152

372151

372150

372149

409227 409164

409165

409163
409162

409161

409238

409141
409142

409143
409144
409145

409146
409147

409148
409149
409150

409151

409232

409228

409235
409234

409233

409230
409229

409236

409231

409237

409243

409193

409226

409152
409242

409140 372148

409211

409215

409221

409153
409154

409155
409156

409157
409217

409207

409222

409224

372173
372174

372175

409197

409223

409195

409219

409208

409196

409216

409194

409225

409212

409209
409210

409218

409213

372172

409158
409159

409160

372171

409220

409214

409198

409199

372170

409200

409283

409201

372169

371980

409312409138

372167
372166

ST
AT

E H
IG

HW
AY

 31
7

E CEDAR CREST LN



91
89

2291
9

91
89

22

92
3

91
9

91
2

90
8

82
4

82
0

81
2

80
4

72
0

716

708

71
1

72
3

80
7

81
5

82
39

03
91

1

91
2

904
82

8
82

0
81

2
80

4
72

4
71

6
70

8
62

6
61

6

81
5

82
7

90
7

91
5 92

3
91

5
91

1
90

7
82

7
81

9
81

1
80

3
72

7
71

9
71

1
70

3
62

3
61

5
60

7

91
6

90
8

709

70
3

61
9

61
5

61
1

60
7

710

70
4

62
0

61
6

61
2

60
8

60
360

4602

605

609
613

617
606

610
614

80
72

78
32

79
50

80
64

77
17

81
32

AG

SF-2

NS

NS

NS

2017-B

2017-A

2017-B
2007-A

1112A-A

ST
AT

E H
IG

HW
AY

 31
7

SUGAR BROOK DR

E CEDAR CREST LN

Z-FY-14-24 Amy's Attic Site Plan Review 7832 North State Highway 317

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

0 200 400
Feet 3/21/2014

City of Temple GIS
tmiles

1234-A









































1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4660 

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-24) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A SITE PLAN REVIEW AMENDING ORDINANCE 
NO. 2001-2748 AND FURTHER AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-4519 
ON LOT 2, BLOCK 1, JOHNSON LONE STAR PROPERTIES ADDITION, 
LOCATED AT 7950 SH 317; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, the property (both lots 1 & 2) were originally zoned PD-NS in 2001 and 

2009, respectively – both included a site plan which is required by Code for Planned 
Development District projects; 

 
 Whereas, the site plan which was amended in 2012 by City Council approval allows 
for Phase 2 of the Amy’s Attic development, which backs up to, and is adjacent to, about 
300 feet of single-family residences at the rear of the southern property line; 
 
 Whereas, Phase 2 would match the masonry for the buildings, the wrought iron fence 
and the State Highway 317 landscaping approved as part of Phase 1 to the north – Phase 2 
would also include an 8-foot wood fence and the preservation of a 15-foot natural buffer 
area for screening purposes adjacent to single-family residences; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize these actions. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a site plan amendment to Ordinance No. 2001-
2748 and an amendment to Ordinance No. 2012-4519 on lot 2, block 1, Johnson Lone Star 
Properties Addition, located at 7950 SH 317, as outlined in the map attached hereto as 
Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes.  
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
 



2 
 

 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 

May, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

_____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
             

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

05/01/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION AND REVIEW: 
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-26: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to Commercial District (C) on 11.579 
+/- acres, being part of Lot 1, Block 1, D.R.S. Addition, located at 111 Hart Road. 
 
P&Z RECOMMENDATION:  At their April 7, 2014 meeting Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended unanimous approval (8 to 0) of the rezoning request from AG District to C District as 
submitted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 
 
Based on the following, staff recommends approval to rezone the property from AG to C: 
 

1. The proposed zoning complies with the Future Land Use Plan (FLUP), which identifies 
this area as Suburban Commercial; 

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 
3. The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding uses and zoning districts; and   
4. Utilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY: An RV Park, which was approved in 2001 through a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP), is currently located on the property.  The rezoning would allow for the relocation of an existing 
IH-35 billboard (or “off-premise sign) as a result of TXDOT’s IH-35 expansion project to the property, 
as well.  Billboards are only allowed in C, Light Industrial (LI) and Heavy Industrial zoning districts.  
There is no plan at this time to redevelop the property.   
 
Although RV Parks are not allowed in C Districts, CUP #164 permitted the RV Park and it would still 
apply until the land is redeveloped.  A new use in the future would have to comply with the C District 
permitted uses and with the applicable C development standards.  
 
Those uses include but are not limited to: 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Single Family (Attached & Detached) Mini Storage 
Industrialized Housing    Retail & Service Uses 
Home for the aged    Truck Stop 
Duplex     Fuel sales 



 
 

05/01/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, triplex and 
apartments. A number of uses are allowed by an approved conditional use permit (temporary asphalt 
concrete batching plants, outdoor auto parts sales). 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
 
Direction FLUP      Zoning Current Land Use 
Site  Suburban Commercial   AG  RV Park 
North            Suburban Commercial     C  Bar or alcohol beverage sales 
South            Suburban Commercial   AG & LI       Undeveloped  
East Suburban Commercial & Industrial AG, C  Commercial Uses & 

Undeveloped  
West          Industrial     AG  Undeveloped 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property was designated as Suburban Commercial in the Comprehensive Plan/FLUP, 
which is a tool to guide future land use decisions.  Suburban Commercial is characterized by 
“extensive landscaping and/or open space.” 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The portion of the property under consideration has frontage along IH-35, which is a major arterial 
and along Hart Road, which is along the current alignment of the proposed “Outer Loop” major 
arterial.   
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available by an 8” line, while water is available through 6” and 12” lines along Pegasus 
Drive.   
 
 

 
 
 



05/01/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standard non-residential setbacks in the C district are: 

Min Lot Size  N/A  
Min Lot Width N/A 
Min Lot Depth N/A 
Front   30’ from centerline (Special Setback per UDC Section 4.4.4.F.1D)  
Side           0’ 
Side (corner)     10’ 
Rear 0’ 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 3 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out to 
property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance. 
As of Thursday April 17, 2014, at 12:00 PM, no notices had been received.  The newspaper printed 
notice of the public hearing on March 26, 2014, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning and Location Map  
Future Land Use Map    
Utility Aerial Map 
Notification Map 
Ordinance 



4/3/2014

1

Subject Site (current RV Park)

Property to East (across IH-35)



4/3/2014

2

Additional Property to East (across IH-35)

Property to North



4/3/2014

3

Property to West

Property to South



(

(

1 1

4221-A

4228-A

4184-A

4224-A

4225-A

4227-A

111

935

142
146

152

138

627
8

60
43

AGAG

C

C

LI

C

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

HART RD

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N G
EN

ER
AL

 BR
UC

E D
R

BERGER RD

MOORES MILL RD

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N G
EN

ER
AL

 BR
UC

E D
R

Z-FY-14-26 AG to C 111 Hart Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1
0 100 20050

Feet
1Case

Zoning
Subdivisions
Parcel

Outblocks
Addresses

( Blocks
Lots 3/18/2014

City of Temple GIS
Tmiles



PE
GA

SU
S D

R N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

HART RD

BERGER RD

MOORES MILL RD
N G

EN
ER

AL
 BR

UC
E D

R

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5
N G

EN
ER

AL
 BR

UC
E D

R

µ

Z-FY-14-26 Rezoning from Agricultural (AG) to Commercial (C) 111 Hart Road

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 100 20050
Feet

4/2/2014
City of Temple GIS



G

G

8"

12
"

10
"

6"

6"

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

HART RD

BERGER RD

N G
EN

ER
AL

 BR
UC

E D
R

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5
N G

EN
ER

AL
 BR

UC
E D

R

Z-FY-14-26 AG to C 111 Hart Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
Case

G Fire Hydrant
Sewer Line

Water Line
Expressway
Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial
Proposed K-TUTS
Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial
Collector
Conceptual Collector

0 100 20050
Feet 3/18/2014

City of Temple GIS



745
694

652693

744

111

935

142
146152

138

1025
1075

643
6

627
8

60
43

AG

C

C

AG

LI

C

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

3

6
5

2
1

1

2
1

1222-A

4221-A

4228-A

4229-A

1224-A

4220-A4219-B

4219-C

4184-A

4224-A

4225-A

4184-A

4185-A

4185-A

PE
GA

SU
S D

R

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N G
EN

ER
AL

 BR
UC

E D
R

HART RD

BERGER RD

MOORES MILL RD

N I
NT

ER
ST

AT
E 3

5

N G
EN

ER
AL

 BR
UC

E D
R

Z-FY-14-26 AG to C Lot 1, Block 1, D.R.S Addition
111 Hart Road

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 200 400
Feet

3/18/2014
City of Temple GIS
tmiles



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4661 

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-26) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (C) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 11.579 ACRES, LOCATED AT 111 HART ROAD; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) 
to Commercial District (C) on approximately 11.579 acres being part of lot 1, block 1, 
D.R.S. Addition, and located at 111 Hart Road, as outlined in the map attached hereto 
as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 

May, 2014. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
 
           

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

05/01/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION AND REVIEW: 
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-25: Consider adopting an 
ordinance on a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow an off-premise sign (billboard) on a portion of 
Lot 1, Block 1, D.R.S. Addition, located at 111 Hart Road, Temple, Texas. 
 
P&Z RECOMMENDATION:  At their April 7, 2014 meeting Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended unanimous approval (8 to 0) of the Conditional Use Permit to allow for a billboard 
relocation at less than the minimum 1500 spacing from the nearest billboards already existing along 
N. General Bruce Drive. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 
 
Based on the following, staff recommends approval to relocate the existing Lamar Advertising off-
premise sign: 
 

1. The billboard would meet all of our standards, with the exception of distance from the 
nearest off-premise sign (which is the reason for the CUP request).  

2. The location is located along a major thoroughfare (IH-35) and away from any 
residential uses.  

 
ITEM SUMMARY: According to Sec. 7.6.11 of the UDC that regulates off-premise signs: 
 

 An off-premise sign along Interstate 35 may not be erected within 1,500 feet of another off-
premise sign without a CUP 

 L.5, “If the proposed off premise sign does not meet all city standards including minimum 
spacing, area, height and setback, an applicant must receive approval of a Conditional Use 
permit for the new location.” 
 

The proposed location at Lucky’s RV Park would be approximately 750 feet south of the nearest off-
premise sign, therefore requiring a Conditional Use Permit by Code.  The proposed site is for the 
relocation of a billboard that was previously located along a different section of IH-35. 
 
 
 

 
 



05/01/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 3 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out to 
property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance. 
As of Thursday April 17, 2014, at 12:00 PM, one notice had been received from a neighbor in 
opposition to the request due to “needing more detail before we would be in favor of this conditional 
use change.”  The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on March 26, 2014, in accordance 
with state law and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Applicant maps 
Neighbor Response 
Ordinance 















1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4662 

[Z-FY-14-25] 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW 
AN OFF-PREMISE SIGN CLOSER THAN 1,500 FEET FROM ANOTHER 
OFF-PREMISE LOCATED AT 111 HART ROAD, TEMPLE, TEXAS; 
DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Unified Development Code of the City of Temple, Texas, provides for 
the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City 
Council to impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and 
locations indicate to be important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the 
protection of adjacent property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, 
odor, explosion, glare, offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for 
the establishment of conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and 
construction for any use for which a permit is authorized;  

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after 
due consideration of the conditions, operation and location of 111 Hart Road, recommends 
that the City Council approve the application for this Conditional Use Permit to allow an off-
premise sign closer than 1,500 feet from another off-premise sign; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as 
required by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by 
the applicant concerning the proposed plans for operation of said establishment and has heard 
the comments and evidence presented by all persons supporting or opposing this application 
at said public hearing, and after examining the conditions, operation and the location of said 
establishment, finds that the proposed use of the premises substantially complies with the 
comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the City Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit to allow an off-premise 
sign closer than 1,500 feet from another off-premise sign located at 111 Hart Road, Temple, 
Texas, more fully shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part of for all purposes. 



 
 

2 

 
Part 2: The owner/applicant, his employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 

hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and 
conditions of operation: 

 
(A) The permittee must demonstrate that the granting of the permit would not be 

detrimental to the public welfare of the citizens of the City. 
 
(B) The City Council may cancel, suspend, deny or revoke this CUP, in 

accordance with the revocation clause set forth in Section 7-608 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
(C) The CUP runs with the property. Changes in the owner or lessee of a permitted 

establishment do not affect the permit. 
 
(D) The CUP may be canceled, suspended or revoked in accordance with the 

revocation clause set forth in Section 7-608 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Part 3: The Director of Planning is hereby directed to make the necessary changes to 

the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 4: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 
May, 2014. 



 
 3 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
05/01/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
Walter Hetzel, Animal Services Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 6, “Animals and Fowl”, Sec 6-13, Additional Regulations, 
to allow the keeping of miniature swine within the City of Temple in accordance with certain 
provisions. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 
 
At its April 14, 2014, meeting, the Animal Services Advisory Board voted 4/2 to recommend 
disapproval of the proposed changes. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  In response to recent public comments requesting consideration of amending the 
City ordinance to relating to the keeping of swine, staff was directed to submit for consideration an 
amendment to the current City ordinance that would allow the keeping of miniature swine (pot-bellied 
pigs) within the City of Temple in accordance with certain provisions.  

The current wording of the City ordinance prohibits the keeping of any swine except if kept on a tract 
of land of least ten (10) acres which is zoned "agricultural" and, further, provided the pen or enclosure 
is located a distance not less than five hundred (500) feet from the nearest property line of tract upon 
which the swine are kept and maintained. 
 
At its April 14, 2014 meeting, the Animal Services Advisory Board considered a recommendation to 
the City Council amending Chapter 6, Section 6.13. The Board discussed draft ordinance changes 
presented by staff. The Board voted 4/2 to recommend to Council disapproval of any changes to the 
Chapter 6 of the code.  
 
If Council desires to amend the ordinance and allow the keeping of miniature swine, staff 
recommends the following provisions be incorporated into the ordinance: 
   

1. The animal is no more than eighteen (18) inches high at the shoulder and no more than 
three (3) feet long;  

 

 



05/01/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

2. The animal weighs no more than seventy five (75) pounds;

3. There will be a maximum of two (2) swine per household or business. The swine may
be of any age;

4. All miniature swine must be either spayed or neutered. Under no circumstances may
the person engage in the propagation or breeding of miniature swine within the city
limits;

5. The owner or keeper of all miniature swine must provide to the Animal Services
Manager a health certificate from a licensed veterinarian documenting that the swine
has been spayed or neutered;

6. All locations where miniature swine are kept must be maintained in a clean and sanitary
condition and shall be cleaned of swine excrement on a daily basis. The accumulation
of waste from miniature swine that will create obnoxious odors and/or health hazards is
prohibited;

7. It shall be unlawful for any person to keep or maintain miniature swine unless the swine
have received annual vaccinations against erysipelas. The first inoculation must be
received before the animal is four (4) months of age.

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4664   

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 6, “ANIMALS AND FOWL," SECTION 
6-13, ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, TO ALLOW THE KEEPING OF 
MINIATURE SWINE WITHIN THE CITY OF TEMPLE, IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH CERTAIN PROVISIONS; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, in response to recent public comments requesting consideration of 
amending the ordinance relating to the keeping of swine, staff was directed to submit for 
consideration, an amendment to the current City Code that would allow the keeping of 
miniature swine (pot-bellied pigs) within the City in accordance with certain provisions; 

Whereas, the current wording of the City ordinance prohibits the keeping of any 
swine except if kept on a tract of land of at least ten (10 ) acres, which is zoned ‘agricultural’ 
and, provided the pen or enclosure is located at a distance of not less than five-hundred feet 
from the nearest property line of the tract upon which the swine are kept and maintained; 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  Chapter 6, "Animals and Fowl,” Section 6-13, Additional Regulations, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas, is amended to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 6 

ANIMALS AND FOWL 

Sec. 6-13. Additional Regulations 

(a) Restrictions on keeping of rabbits. No person shall keep or maintain rabbits or hares 
within twenty-five (25) feet of the residence of any person other than the owner or keeper 
thereof; provided, that, when kept in a clean, dry, sanitary and odor free cage, and the feed is 
stored in rodent proof containers, not more than two (2) rabbits may be kept and maintained, 
as pets, in a pen or cage which is not closer than twenty-five (25) feet to the nearest property 
line of the lot, tract or parcel on which said pen or cage is located. 

(b) Keeping of Swine. It shall be unlawful for any person to keep any swine within the limits 
of the City of Temple, Texas, except that: 



2 
 

 
1. swine may be kept in a pen or enclosure situated upon a tract of land containing at 

least ten (10) acres which is zoned "agricultural" and, further, provided the pen or 
enclosure is located a distance not less than five hundred (500) feet from the 
nearest property line of tract upon which the swine are kept and maintained; and 

2. miniature swine may be kept as set forth below in Section 6-13(c). 
 
(c) Keeping of miniature swine (pot-bellied pigs). Except as provided above, no person shall 
keep a miniature swine in the City except in accordance with the provisions set forth herein:  
 

1. The animal is no more than eighteen (18) inches high at the shoulder and no more 
than three (3) feet long.  

2. The animal weighs no more than seventy five (75) pounds. 
3. There will be a maximum of two (2) swine per household or business. The swine 

may be of any age. 
4. All miniature swine must be either spayed or neutered. Under no circumstances 

may a person engage in the propagation or breeding of miniature swine within the 
city limits. 

5. The owner or keeper of all miniature swine must provide to the Animal Services 
Manager a health certificate from a licensed veterinarian documenting that the 
swine has been spayed or neutered. 

6. All locations where miniature swine are kept must be maintained in a clean and 
sanitary condition and shall be cleaned of swine excrement on a daily basis. The 
accumulation of waste from miniature swine that will create obnoxious odors 
and/or health hazards is prohibited. 

7. It shall be unlawful for any person to keep or maintain miniature swine unless the 
swine have received annual vaccinations against erysipelas. The first inoculation 
must be received before the animal is four (4) months of age.  

 
(d) Keeping of Animals or Fowl Near Creeks and Streams. It shall be unlawful for any 
person to keep or maintain any animal or fowl in a pen, cage or enclosure in, near, or on a 
creek or stream within the City and cause or contribute to the pollution of said creek or 
stream by permitting drainage from said pens, cages or enclosures, fecal matter or urine to 
enter said creek or stream. No pigs or hogs shall be permitted or allowed to have access 
to, to enter, or to water a creek or stream within the City. 
 
(e) Regulation on Keeping Animals, Fowl and Bees. It shall be unlawful for any person to 
keep or maintain any guinea fowl, horses, mules, donkeys, cattle, goats, sheep, chickens, 
turkeys, geese, ducks or pigeons in any pen, yard, enclosure, barn, building or other 
place within the city limits of the City, within one hundred fifty (150) feet of the 
residence of any person other than the owner or keeper and it shall be unlawful for any 
person to keep bees and beehives within three hundred (300) feet of the residence of any 
person other than the owner or keeper. 
 
EXCEPTIONS: Sections 6-13(a) through 6-13(d) of this chapter shall not apply to: 
 



3 
 

1. Veterinarians keeping animals or fowl at the veterinarian's regular place of business 
during periods of time said animals or fowl are being treated for disease, or injury, or 
observed in the course of such treatment; 
 
2. Animals or fowl kept, maintained and used in the course of medical, educational or 
scientific research at an established business location or under conditions approved by the 
division of Animal Services; 
 
3. Circuses, traveling shows, zoos and auction barns operating under permit or sanction of 
the City; 
 
4. Animals or fowl which, because of injury or age, require temporary care, provided that 
such animal or fowl shall not be kept for a period of time exceeding thirty (30) days, and shall 
not be kept or raised for sale, barter or consumption; provided, further, that this exemption 
shall not apply to wild animals; 
 
5. Animals and fowl, such as baby chickens, rabbits, pigeons and ducks, kept at an 
established place of business dealing in farm and ranch supply and which animal or fowl are 
domesticated and marketable for human consumption; provided, that said animals or fowl are 
kept and maintained in an enclosure which is dry, sanitary, cleaned regularly and free of 
accumulations of odor- causing debris and fecal matter. 
 
(f) Injury and destruction of wild birds. Any person eleven (11) years of age, or more, who 
shall willfully kill or injure any wild bird, remove the eggs or young from the nest of a 
wild bird, or in any manner destroy the eggs or young of a wild bird, save and except the 
pigeon, english sparrow, grackles and blackbirds, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
(g) Tampering with Traps. It shall be unlawful for any person to tamper with, destroy, 
damage, spring, or cause to malfunction any trap set by the division of Animal Services, 
or to release any dog or cat from any such trap. 
 
(h) Keeping in Unoccupied Residence. It shall be unlawful to keep, shelter or enclose 
any dog or cat within any residential building which is not occupied as a residence by a 
person. 
 
(i) Limitation of Number. 
 
1.  It shall be unlawful for any person to keep, maintain, or shelter more than three (3) 
dogs, plus one litter to age of three (3) months, within the City, without a written permit.  
Any person desiring to keep, maintain, or shelter more than three (3) dogs plus one litter 
to age three (3) months shall make a written request to the Supervisor for a permit to 
keep a specified number of dogs, not to exceed five (5) adult dogs at a specified 
location. Only one permit may be exercised on a lot or parcel of real property. Said lot or 
parcel or real property shall be at least one (1) acre in size. The Supervisor may issue 
such permit if he determines that such person has a proper and adequate enclosure in 
which to keep the dogs, and a proper and sanitary shelter for the dogs. 
 



4 
 

2. A permit may be revoked by the Supervisor in the event either of the above criteria is not 
maintained, if the permittee is convicted of any violation of this chapter, if any one of the 
dogs is on two (2) separate occasions found at large by an Animal Services officer, or if the 
Supervisor determines that the animals have become a nuisance. 
 
3. The provisions of this section shall apply equally to the keeping of cats. A person may 
keep three (3) dogs and three (3) cats, plus a litter of each to age three (3) months, without a 
permit and, with a permit, may keep a larger specified number of dogs or cats. 
 
4. The fee for the permit shall be established by resolution of the City Council. 
 
5. The limitations of this section shall not apply to dogs or cats kept upon the business 
premises of any veterinarian, kennel, animal shelter, pet shop, non-profit animal welfare 
organization group, or scientific research institution located in a zoning district zoned for 
such use. 
 
(j) Vehicle Striking Animal. The driver of any vehicle which collides with or strikes any 
domesticated animal shall stop such vehicle immediately at the scene of such accident, or 
as close as possible without interfering with traffic, render reasonable assistance to said 
animal and then and there either locate and notify the owner of said animal or report said 
accident and the injury to the division of Animal Services or the Police Department. An 
injured animal may be delivered to its owner, a veterinarian, an Animal Services 
employee or an Animal Service facility. The provisions of this section shall not apply to 
any emergency vehicle or to a driver taking an ill or injured person to medical care, nor 
shall it require assistance to an animal if providing such assistance would place any 
person in danger from the animal or traffic. 
 
(k) Destruction of Certain Animals. 
 
1. An animal that has been severely injured may be destroyed in a humane manner if 
the animal is suffering and is not expected to survive. 
 
2. An animal that exhibits symptoms of mange, distemper, parvo or other communicable 
diseases may be destroyed in a humane manner.  Animals suspected of having a 
communicable disease shall not be confined with healthy animals in an animal shelter. 
 
3. If an injured or diseased animal in the custody of an animal shelter or Animal Services 
officer is wearing a current vaccination tag or other identification, the custodian shall make 
every reasonable effort to notify the owner of the animal's location and condition before 
destroying the animal. Once notified, if the owner proceeds immediately to the location of the 
injured animal, it shall be released to the owner without charge. Animals that are not wearing 
any type of identification may be destroyed immediately. 
 
4. The City shall not be responsible for obtaining veterinary services for unclaimed diseased 
or injured animals. In the event a person obtains veterinary services for a diseased or injured 
animal, a person subsequently claiming ownership of the animal shall be liable for all 
expenses of treatment. A person or entity that obtains veterinary services for an animal may 
bring suit against the animal's owner to collect expenses of treatment. 



5 
 

 
5. The City, its officers, agents and employees, shall not be liable in damages for the 
destruction of any animal accomplished in accordance with the chapter. 
 
(l) Mayoral Proclamation. The Mayor shall have the authority by proclamation to make 
any additional rules or regulations that he might deem necessary to protect the public 
against animals. Any such rules or regulations shall remain in full force and effect until 
the first regular meeting of the city council subsequent to the rule or regulation being 
established. The rules and regulations shall expire unless approved by the vote of at least 
three of the councilmembers in attendance and voting at said meeting. 
 

Part 2:  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 
Part 3: This ordinance shall take effect on May 15, 2014. 

 
Part 4: The Code of Ordinances of the City, as amended, shall remain in full force 

and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance. 
 

 
Part 5:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 
May, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
__________________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________   __________________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



 
 

 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
 

05/01/14 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting and ordinance 
authorizing an amendment to the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and 
Project Plans to appropriate additional tax increment revenue, expenditures for downtown 
improvements, public improvements and debt service for fiscal years 2014 through 2033. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented, with the 
second reading and final adoption set for May 15, 2014. 
  
ITEM SUMMARY:  At their April 23, 2014 regular meeting, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board 
approved the recommendation of this amendment.  Below is a summary of the proposed Financing 
and Project Plans amendments. 
 
(A). Appropriating additional tax increment revenue in FY 2014: 
 
Line 4 – Tax Revenues:  FY 2014 tax increment revenue received is $754,141 more than the net 
amount reflected in the current Financing and Project Plans.  This amendment will adjust the tax 
revenues to the actual amount collected for FY 2014. 
 
(B). Appropriating additional funds needed for the Downtown Rail Safety Zones: 
 
Line 401 – Downtown Improvements:   The current project opinion of probable cost for the 
Downtown Rail Safety Zones is $857,029.  There is $363,285 available for the project.  An additional 
$493,744 is needed to fund the project.  We are commending adding $500,000 from the additional tax 
increment to Line 401. 

 
(C). Appropriating additional funds needed for the 2013 Bond Issue debt service payments in 
FY 2014 by $109,155 and adjusting future debt service payments in FY 2015-2033 to actual - 
net adjustment is $1,518,492: 

 
Line 31 – Debt Service 2013/ Line 610 – Public Improvements: Increase the amount of debt 
service payments in FY 2014-2033 to actual.  The funding for FY 2014 is from the additional tax 
increment recognized.  The funding for FY 2016-2033 is from public improvements. 
 



  
05/01/14 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    The net increase to fund balance (‘dry powder’) in the Financing/Project Plans 
for FY 2014 is $144,986.  The net change to fund balance (‘dry powder’) for FY 2015 – FY 2033 is $0.  
Public improvements have been decreased by $1,518,492 in FY 2016-2033.  The detail for FY 2014 
is shown below. 
  

 Tax Increment revenue increase    $754,141 

 Downtown Rail Safety Zones               (500,000) 

 Debt Service                                        (109,155) 
Net Increase to Fund Balance in FY 2014 $144,986 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Financing Plan 
Summary Financing Plan with Detailed Project Plan 
Ordinance 
 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/23/14 to Zone Board Page 1 of 5

Y/E 9/30/14 Y/E 9/30/15 Y/E 9/30/16 Y/E 9/30/17 Y/E 9/30/18 Y/E 9/30/19 Y/E 9/30/20 Y/E 9/30/21 Y/E 9/30/22

DESCRIPTION Year 32 Year 33 Year 34 Year 35 Year 36 Year 37 Year 38 Year 39 Year 40

1 "Taxable Increment" 153,016,117$        157,254,113$        322,383,715$        340,364,509$        424,792,743$        429,040,670$        433,331,077$        437,664,388$        468,734,522$        

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin 30,501,761$       2,350,801$         1,632,000$         2,323,355$         2,341,891$         2,295,758$         2,263,570$         2,263,955$         2,277,242$         

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve 1,765,643           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation 32,267,404$       2,350,801$         1,632,000$         2,323,355$         2,341,891$         2,295,758$         2,263,570$         2,263,955$         2,277,242$         

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues 5,602,698           4,908,567           13,233,921         13,777,927         16,158,502         16,307,892         16,458,775         16,611,168         17,096,375         

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes (72,728)               (73,629)               (198,509)             (206,669)             (242,378)             (244,618)             (246,882)             (249,168)             (256,446)             

8 Interest Income-Other 50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                40,000                40,000                30,000                10,000                

10 Grant Funds -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway 36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                

14 Other Revenues 563,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

17 Bond Issue -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

20    Total Sources of Funds 6,178,970$         4,920,938$         13,121,412$       13,657,258$       16,002,124$       16,139,274$       16,287,893$       16,428,000$       16,885,929$       

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 38,446,374$       7,271,739$         14,753,413$       15,980,613$       18,344,015$       18,435,031$       18,551,464$       18,691,956$       19,163,171$       

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

26 2003 Bond Issue {$11.740} -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

27 2008 Bond Issue {$16.010 mil} -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

27 2009 Bond Refunding 1,479,969           1,499,769           1,508,775           1,510,150           1,488,750           1,485,000           -                      -                      -                      

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil} 1,240,495           1,239,233           1,240,854           1,240,096           1,241,957           1,241,173           1,237,744           1,241,670           1,242,422           

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding} 914,900              914,450              913,550              912,200              908,350              915,950              2,497,800           2,497,550           2,494,950           

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding} 17,700                17,700                82,700                76,400                79,600                77,650                80,050                77,250                78,750                

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue 906,910              924,894              924,894              2,034,894           2,047,694           2,048,344           2,047,944           2,046,494           2,031,494           

32 Issuance Costs -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

33 Refunding Bonds Proceeds -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

34 Payment to Refunding Bond Agent -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

32 Bond Discount

35 Paying Agent Services 1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  

40      Subtotal-Debt Service 4,561,174           4,597,246           4,671,973           5,774,940           5,767,551           5,769,317           5,864,738           5,864,164           5,848,816           

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt 212,638              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,100              

52 Legal/Audit 1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies] 150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              

55 Zone Park Maintenance [maintenance] 25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                

56 Rail Maintenance 211,799              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

58 Road/Signage Maintenance 233,077              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing] 199,650              219,615              241,577              253,655              266,338              279,655              293,638              308,320              323,736              

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract] 25,000                26,250                26,250                26,250                27,563                27,563                27,563                28,941                28,941                

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures 1,058,364           797,065              819,027              831,205              845,201              858,518              872,501              888,561              904,077              

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES 5,619,538$         5,394,311$         5,491,000$         6,606,145$         6,612,752$         6,627,835$         6,737,239$         6,752,725$         6,752,893$         

80 Funds Available for Projects 32,826,836$       1,877,428$         9,262,413$         9,374,468$         11,731,264$       11,807,196$       11,814,225$       11,939,231$       12,410,279$       

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park 9,900,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

200 Corporate Campus Park 2,954,680           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

250 Bioscience Park 2,503,658           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

350 Northwest Loop 363 Improvements (TxDOT commitment) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

400 Synergy Park 1,132,475           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

450 Downtown 1,541,978           245,428              661,696              688,896              807,925              815,395              822,939              830,558              854,819              

500 TMED 11,097,857         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

510 Airport Park 1,345,387           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

610 Public Improvements -                      -                      6,277,362           6,343,681           8,627,581           8,728,231           8,727,331           8,831,431           9,247,881           

     Subtotal-Projects 30,476,035         245,428              6,939,058           7,032,577           9,435,506           9,543,626           9,550,270           9,661,989           10,102,700         

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 36,095,573$       5,639,739$         12,430,058$       13,638,722$       16,048,258$       16,171,461$       16,287,509$       16,414,714$       16,855,593$       

700 FUND BALANCE, End 2,350,801$         1,632,000$         2,323,355$         2,341,891$         2,295,758$         2,263,570$         2,263,955$         2,277,242$         2,307,579$         

FINANCING PLAN

T:\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-23-14 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/23/14 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Issue

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

26 2003 Bond Issue {$11.740}

27 2008 Bond Issue {$16.010 mil} 

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue

32 Issuance Costs

33 Refunding Bonds Proceeds

34 Payment to Refunding Bond Agent

32 Bond Discount

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

55 Zone Park Maintenance [maintenance]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Northwest Loop 363 Improvements (TxDOT commitment)

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

510 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 2 of 5

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50

495,321,867$          522,175,086$          549,296,836$          708,089,805$          721,740,703$          755,238,110$          762,790,491$          770,418,396$          778,122,580$          785,903,806$          

2,307,579$          2,346,384$          2,269,155$          2,286,905$          2,323,850$          2,296,168$          2,334,295$          2,339,036$          2,311,511$          2,350,260$          

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,307,579$          2,346,384$          2,269,155$          2,286,905$          2,323,850$          2,296,168$          2,334,295$          2,339,036$          2,311,511$          2,350,260$          

17,526,945          17,961,821          18,401,045          20,475,466          20,749,563          21,271,025          21,471,540          21,674,059          21,878,606          22,085,196          

(262,904)              (269,427)              (276,016)              (307,132)              (311,243)              (319,065)              (322,073)              (325,111)              (328,179)              (331,278)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

17,310,041$        17,738,394$        18,171,029$        20,214,334$        20,484,320$        20,997,960$        21,195,467$        21,394,948$        21,596,427$        21,799,918$        

19,617,619$        20,084,778$        20,440,184$        22,501,239$        22,808,169$        23,294,128$        23,529,762$        23,733,984$        23,907,938$        24,150,178$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,030,094            2,026,694            2,038,413            2,051,613            2,059,113            2,061,713            2,061,713            2,069,113            2,073,513            2,084,913            

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,030,094            2,026,694            2,038,413            2,051,613            2,059,113            2,061,713            2,061,713            2,069,113            2,073,513            2,084,913            

175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               

1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   

150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               

25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

339,922               356,919               374,764               393,503               413,178               433,837               455,529               478,305               502,220               527,331               

28,941                 30,388                 30,388                 30,388                 31,907                 31,907                 31,907                 33,502                 33,502                 33,502                 

920,263               938,707               956,552               975,291               996,485               1,017,144            1,038,836            1,063,207            1,087,122            1,112,233            

2,950,357$          2,965,401$          2,994,965$          3,026,904$          3,055,598$          3,078,857$          3,100,549$          3,132,320$          3,160,635$          3,197,146$          

16,667,262$        17,119,377$        17,445,219$        19,474,335$        19,752,571$        20,215,271$        20,429,213$        20,601,664$        20,747,303$        20,953,032$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

876,347               898,091               920,052               1,023,773            1,037,478            1,063,551            1,073,577            1,083,703            1,093,930            1,104,260            

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

13,444,531          13,952,131          14,238,262          16,126,712          16,418,925          16,817,425          17,016,600          17,206,450          17,303,112          17,590,337          

14,320,878          14,850,222          15,158,314          17,150,485          17,456,403          17,880,976          18,090,177          18,290,153          18,397,042          18,694,597          

17,271,235$        17,815,623$        18,153,280$        20,177,389$        20,512,001$        20,959,833$        21,190,726$        21,422,473$        21,557,677$        21,891,743$        

2,346,384$          2,269,155$          2,286,905$          2,323,850$          2,296,168$          2,334,295$          2,339,036$          2,311,511$          2,350,260$          2,258,435$          

FINANCING PLAN

T:\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-23-14 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/23/14 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Issue

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

26 2003 Bond Issue {$11.740}

27 2008 Bond Issue {$16.010 mil} 

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue

32 Issuance Costs

33 Refunding Bonds Proceeds

34 Payment to Refunding Bond Agent

32 Bond Discount

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

55 Zone Park Maintenance [maintenance]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Northwest Loop 363 Improvements (TxDOT commitment)

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

510 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 3 of 5

2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042

51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60

793,762,844$          801,700,472$          809,717,477$          817,814,652$          825,992,798$          834,252,726$          842,595,253$          851,021,206$          859,531,418$          868,126,732$          

2,258,435$          2,332,473$          2,352,311$          2,342,093$          2,300,600$          2,330,074$          2,330,942$          2,301,726$          2,344,575$          2,259,727$          

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,258,435$          2,332,473$          2,352,311$          2,342,093$          2,300,600$          2,330,074$          2,330,942$          2,301,726$          2,344,575$          2,259,727$          

22,293,851          22,504,596          22,717,445          22,932,425          23,149,554          23,368,854          23,590,347          23,814,054          24,039,999          24,268,202          

(334,408)              (337,569)              (340,762)              (343,986)              (347,243)              (350,533)              (353,855)              (357,211)              (360,600)              (364,023)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

22,005,443$        22,213,027$        22,422,683$        22,634,439$        22,848,311$        23,064,321$        23,282,492$        23,502,843$        23,725,399$        23,950,179$        

24,263,879$        24,545,500$        24,774,994$        24,976,532$        25,148,911$        25,394,395$        25,613,434$        25,804,569$        26,069,974$        26,209,906$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,092,913            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,092,913            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               

1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   

150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               

25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

553,698               581,383               610,452               640,974               673,023               706,674               742,008               779,108               818,064               858,967               

35,177                 35,177                 35,177                 36,936                 36,936                 36,936                 38,783                 38,783                 38,783                 40,722                 

1,140,275            1,167,960            1,197,029            1,229,310            1,261,359            1,295,010            1,332,191            1,369,291            1,408,247            1,451,089            

3,233,188$          1,167,960$          1,197,029$          1,229,310$          1,261,359$          1,295,010$          1,332,191$          1,369,291$          1,408,247$          1,451,089$          

21,030,691$        23,377,541$        23,577,965$        23,747,221$        23,887,552$        24,099,385$        24,281,243$        24,435,278$        24,661,727$        24,758,817$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

1,114,693            1,125,230            1,135,872            1,146,621            1,157,478            1,168,443            1,179,517            1,190,703            1,202,000            1,213,410            

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

17,583,525          19,900,000          20,100,000          20,300,000          20,400,000          20,600,000          20,800,000          20,900,000          21,200,000          21,200,000          

18,698,218          21,025,230          21,235,872          21,446,621          21,557,478          21,768,443          21,979,517          22,090,703          22,402,000          22,413,410          

21,931,405$        22,193,189$        22,432,901$        22,675,931$        22,818,837$        23,063,453$        23,311,708$        23,459,994$        23,810,247$        23,864,499$        

2,332,473$          2,352,311$          2,342,093$          2,300,600$          2,330,074$          2,330,942$          2,301,726$          2,344,575$          2,259,727$          2,345,407$          

FINANCING PLAN

T:\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-23-14 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/23/14 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Issue

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

26 2003 Bond Issue {$11.740}

27 2008 Bond Issue {$16.010 mil} 

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue

32 Issuance Costs

33 Refunding Bonds Proceeds

34 Payment to Refunding Bond Agent

32 Bond Discount

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

55 Zone Park Maintenance [maintenance]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Northwest Loop 363 Improvements (TxDOT commitment)

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

510 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 4 of 5

2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050 2051 2052

61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70

876,808,000$          885,576,080$          894,431,840$          903,376,159$          912,409,920$          921,534,019$          930,749,360$          940,056,853$          949,457,422$          958,951,996$          

2,345,407$          2,328,191$          2,346,784$          2,298,704$          2,285,448$          2,306,376$          2,258,602$          2,343,408$          2,259,814$          2,304,475$          

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,345,407$          2,328,191$          2,346,784$          2,298,704$          2,285,448$          2,306,376$          2,258,602$          2,343,408$          2,259,814$          2,304,475$          

20,567,723          20,761,204          20,956,621          21,153,991          21,353,336          21,554,674          21,758,026          21,963,409          22,170,847          22,380,363          

(308,516)              (311,418)              (314,349)              (317,310)              (320,300)              (323,320)              (326,370)              (329,451)              (332,563)              (335,705)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

20,305,207$        20,495,786$        20,688,272$        20,882,681$        21,079,036$        21,277,354$        21,477,656$        21,679,958$        21,884,284$        22,090,658$        

22,650,614$        22,823,977$        23,035,055$        23,181,386$        23,364,484$        23,583,730$        23,736,258$        24,023,366$        24,144,098$        24,395,133$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               

1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   

150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               

25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

901,915               947,011               994,362               1,044,080            1,096,284            1,151,098            1,208,653            1,269,085            1,332,540            1,399,167            

40,722                 40,722                 42,758                 42,758                 42,758                 44,896                 44,896                 44,896                 47,141                 47,141                 

1,494,037            1,539,133            1,588,520            1,638,238            1,690,442            1,747,394            1,804,949            1,865,381            1,931,080            1,997,708            

1,494,037$          1,539,133$          1,588,520$          1,638,238$          1,690,442$          1,747,394$          1,804,949$          1,865,381$          1,931,080$          1,997,708$          

21,156,577$        21,284,844$        21,446,536$        21,543,148$        21,674,043$        21,836,336$        21,931,309$        22,157,984$        22,213,018$        22,397,425$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

1,028,386            1,038,060            1,047,831            1,057,700            1,067,667            1,077,734            1,087,901            1,098,170            1,108,542            1,119,018            

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

17,800,000          17,900,000          18,100,000          18,200,000          18,300,000          18,500,000          18,500,000          18,800,000          18,800,000          19,000,000          

18,828,386          18,938,060          19,147,831          19,257,700          19,367,667          19,577,734          19,587,901          19,898,170          19,908,542          20,119,018          

20,322,423$        20,477,193$        20,736,351$        20,895,937$        21,058,108$        21,325,127$        21,392,850$        21,763,552$        21,839,623$        22,116,726$        

2,328,191$          2,346,784$          2,298,704$          2,285,448$          2,306,376$          2,258,602$          2,343,408$          2,259,814$          2,304,475$          2,278,407$          

FINANCING PLAN

T:\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-23-14 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/23/14 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Issue

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

26 2003 Bond Issue {$11.740}

27 2008 Bond Issue {$16.010 mil} 

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue

32 Issuance Costs

33 Refunding Bonds Proceeds

34 Payment to Refunding Bond Agent

32 Bond Discount

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

55 Zone Park Maintenance [maintenance]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Northwest Loop 363 Improvements (TxDOT commitment)

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

510 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 5 of 5

2053 2054 2055 2056 2057 2058 2059 2060 2061 2062

71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80

968,541,516$          978,226,931$          988,009,200$          997,889,292$          1,007,868,185$       1,017,946,867$       1,028,126,336$       1,038,407,599$       1,048,791,675$       1,059,279,592$       

2,278,407$          2,280,232$          2,306,077$          2,356,622$          2,330,032$          2,321,818$          2,332,263$          2,258,983$          2,296,792$          2,345,487$          

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,278,407$          2,280,232$          2,306,077$          2,356,622$          2,330,032$          2,321,818$          2,332,263$          2,258,983$          2,296,792$          2,345,487$          

22,591,969          22,805,694          23,021,555          23,239,576          23,459,775          23,682,177          23,906,803          24,133,676          24,362,817          24,594,251          

(338,880)              (342,085)              (345,323)              (348,594)              (351,897)              (355,233)              (358,602)              (362,005)              (365,442)              (368,914)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

22,299,089$        22,509,609$        22,722,232$        22,936,982$        23,153,878$        23,372,944$        23,594,201$        23,817,671$        24,043,375$        24,271,337$        

24,577,496$        24,789,841$        25,028,308$        25,293,605$        25,483,910$        25,694,762$        25,926,464$        26,076,654$        26,340,167$        26,616,825$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               175,100               

1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   1,300                   

150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               

25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 25,000                 

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

1,469,125            1,542,581            1,619,710            1,700,696            1,785,731            1,875,017            1,968,768            2,067,206            2,170,567            2,279,095            

47,141                 49,498                 49,498                 49,498                 51,973                 51,973                 51,973                 54,572                 54,572                 54,572                 

2,067,666            2,143,479            2,220,608            2,301,594            2,389,104            2,478,390            2,572,141            2,673,178            2,776,539            2,885,067            

2,067,666$          2,143,479$          2,220,608$          2,301,594$          2,389,104$          2,478,390$          2,572,141$          2,673,178$          2,776,539$          2,885,067$          

22,509,830$        22,646,361$        22,807,700$        22,992,011$        23,094,807$        23,216,372$        23,354,323$        23,403,476$        23,563,628$        23,731,757$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

1,129,598            1,140,285            1,151,078            1,161,979            1,172,989            1,184,109            1,195,340            1,206,684            1,218,141            1,229,713            

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

19,100,000          19,200,000          19,300,000          19,500,000          19,600,000          19,700,000          19,900,000          19,900,000          20,000,000          20,200,000          

20,229,598          20,340,285          20,451,078          20,661,979          20,772,989          20,884,109          21,095,340          21,106,684          21,218,141          21,429,713          

22,297,264$        22,483,764$        22,671,686$        22,963,573$        23,162,092$        23,362,499$        23,667,481$        23,779,862$        23,994,680$        24,314,780$        

2,280,232$          2,306,077$          2,356,622$          2,330,032$          2,321,818$          2,332,263$          2,258,983$          2,296,792$          2,345,487$          2,302,045$          

FINANCING PLAN

T:\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-23-14 



TIF Reinvestment Zone #1

Summary Financing Plan with Detailed Project Plan

Project Plan -  04/23/14 - to Zone Board

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1 Beginning Available Fund Balance, Oct 1 30,501,761$       2,350,801$         1,632,000$         2,323,355$         2,341,891$         2,295,758$         2,263,570$         2,263,955$         2,277,242$         

20 Total Sources of Funds 6,178,970           4,920,938           13,121,412         13,657,258         16,002,124         16,139,274         16,287,893         16,428,000         16,885,929         

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve 1,765,643           -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

25 Net Available for Appropriation 38,446,374         7,271,739           14,753,413         15,980,613         18,344,015         18,435,031         18,551,464         18,691,956         19,163,171         

50/52 General Administrative Expenditures 213,838              176,200              176,200              176,300              176,300              176,300              176,300              176,300              176,400              

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies] 150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              150,000              

55 Zone Park Maintenance [maintenance] 25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000                

56 Rail Maintenance 211,799              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

58 Road/Signage Maintenance 233,077              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

60 Contractual Payments (TEDC - Marketing) 199,650              219,615              241,577              253,655              266,338              279,655              293,638              308,320              323,736              

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract] 25,000                26,250                26,250                26,250                27,563                27,563                27,563                28,941                28,941                

26 Debt Service - 2003 Issue {$11.740 mil} -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

27 Debt Service - 2009 Issue {Refunding} 1,479,969           1,499,769           1,508,775           1,510,150           1,488,750           1,485,000           -                     -                     -                     

28 Debt Service - 2008 Taxable Issue {$10.365 mil} 1,240,495           1,239,233           1,240,854           1,240,096           1,241,957           1,241,173           1,237,744           1,241,670           1,242,422           

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding} 914,900              914,450              913,550              912,200              908,350              915,950              2,497,800           2,497,550           2,494,950           

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding} 17,700                17,700                82,700                76,400                79,600                77,650                80,050                77,250                78,750                

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue 906,910              924,894              924,894              2,034,894           2,047,694           2,048,344           2,047,944           2,046,494           2,031,494           

32 Issuance Costs -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

32 Bond Discount -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

33 Paying Agent Services 1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  1,200                  

70 Total Debt & Operating Expenditures 5,619,538           5,394,311           5,491,000           6,606,145           6,612,752           6,627,835           6,737,239           6,752,725           6,752,893           

80 Funds Available for Projects 32,826,836$       1,877,428$         9,262,413$         9,374,468$         11,731,264$       11,807,196$       11,814,225$       11,939,231$       12,410,279$       

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

TEMPLE INDUSTRIAL PARK:

100 Northern "Y" Phase I 200,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

101 Trans-Load Grading (full site) (East) 185,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

102 Ladder Track Phase II -                      -                     -                     -                     

103 Pepper Creek Main Stem Regional Detention Pond 850,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

104 Research Pkwy (IH 35 to Wendland Ultimate) 2,705,000           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

105 Research Pkwy (Wendland to McLane Pkwy) 5,960,000           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

106 Northeast Utilities @ IH 35/Loop 363 -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

150      Total North Zone/Rail Park (including Enterprise Park) 9,900,000             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

CORPORATE CAMPUS PARK:

155 Bioscience Trail Connection to Airport 750,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

156 McLane Pkwy/Research Pkwy Connection 704,680              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

157 Research Pkwy (McLane Pkwy to Central Point Pkwy) 1,500,000           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

200      Total Corporate Campus Park 2,954,680             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

BIOSCIENCE PARK:

204 Pepper Creek Trail Connection to S&W 29,258                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

205 Bioscience Park Service Road & Utility Extensions 724,400              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

207 Trail Landscaping, Irrigation and Lights 1,750,000           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

250      Total Bio-Science Park 2,503,658             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

350 Northwest Loop 363 Improvements (TxDOT commitment) -                        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

SYNERGY PARK:

351 Lorraine Drive (Southeast Industrial Park) - [$1.5M total project cost] 22,475                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

352 Entry Enhancement 500,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

353 Lorraine Drive/Panda Drive Asphalt 610,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

354 Improvements/Contingency for Synergy Park -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

400      Total Synergy Park 1,132,475             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

DOWNTOWN:

401 Downtown Improvements [1999 Ordinance] 1,116,978           245,428              661,696              688,896              807,925              815,395              822,939              830,558              854,819              

402 Rail Safety Zone Study -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

403 Lot Identification & Signage -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

404 Santa Fe Plaza 300,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

405 Downtown Master Plan 125,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

406 MLK Park -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

450      Total Downtown 1,541,978             245,428                661,696                688,896                807,925                815,395                822,939                830,558                854,819                

TMED:

451 TMED - 1st Street @ Temple College  - STEP Grant Match 59,046                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

452 Master Plan Integration 2010 1,550                  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

453 TMED - 1st Street @ Loop 363 Design/Construction - Design only 71,420                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

454
TMED - Friars Creek Trail 5th Street to S&W Blvd. - [$1.9M total project cost - 

DOE Grant of $400K] 195,881              
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

455 Avenue R - S&W Blvd, Ave R - 19th Intersections 1,962,640           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

456 Ave U from S&W Blvd to 1st St & 13th to 17th connector from Ave R to Loop 363 19,122                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

457 South 1st Street Improvements from the Temple College Apartments to Ave O -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

458 Loop 363 Frontage Rd (UPRR to 5th TIRZ portion) 6,326,548           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

459 Monumentation 520,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

460 Ave U TMED Ave. to 1st Street 1,275,000           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

461 TMED Master Plan (Health Care Campus) 125,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

462 TMED Master Plan & Thoroughfare Plan 55,000                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

463 Friars Creek Trail to Ave. R Trail 486,650              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

464 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

500      Total TMED 11,097,857           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

AIRPORT PARK:

501 Gateway Entrance Projects -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

502 Airport Corporate Hangar Development/Improvements 25,387                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

503 Fuel Farm Loop Roadway 110,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

504 Airport Terminal Access Enhancement 115,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

505 Airport Entry Landscaping & Signage 230,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

506 Northwest Airport Parking & Entrance 865,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

507 East Airport Commercial Facility Improvements -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

508 Corporate Hangar Phase II -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

550      Total Airport Park 1,345,387              -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

610 Public Improvements -                        -                       6,277,362             6,343,681             8,627,581             8,728,231             8,727,331             8,831,431             9,247,881             

Total Planned Project Expenditures 30,476,035         245,428              6,939,058           7,032,577           9,435,506           9,543,626           9,550,270           9,661,989           10,102,700         

700 Available Fund Balance at Year End 2,350,801$         1,632,000$         2,323,355$         2,341,891$         2,295,758$         2,263,570$         2,263,955$         2,277,242$         2,307,579$         

PROJECT PLAN

PROJECT PLAN

SUMMARY FINANCING PLAN

4/17/2014

T:\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-23-14



 
 

1 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4665 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 1 FINANCING AND PROJECT PLANS TO 
APPROPRIATE ADDITIONAL TAX INCREMENT REVENUE, EXPENDITURES 
FOR DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENTS, PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND DEBT 
SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS 2014 THROUGH 2033; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; DECLARING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Temple, Texas, (the "City") created 
Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Temple, Texas (the "Zone") by Ordinance No. 1457 
adopted on September 16, 1982; 
 

Whereas, the Council adopted a Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan for the 
Zone by Ordinance No. 1525 adopted on December 22, 1983, and thereafter amended such plans by 
Ordinance No. 1664 adopted on June 20, 1985, Ordinance No. 1719 adopted on November 21, 1985, 
Ordinance No. 1888 adopted on December 21, 1987, Ordinance No. 1945 adopted on October 20, 
1988; Ordinance No. 1961 adopted on December 1, 1988; Ordinance No. 2039 adopted on April 19, 
1990; Ordinance No. 91-2119 adopted on December 5, 1991; Ordinance No. 92-2138 adopted on 
April 7, 1992; Ordinance No. 94-2260 adopted on March 3, 1994; Ordinance No. 95-2351 adopted on 
June 15, 1995; Ordinance No. 98-2542 adopted on February 5, 1998;  Ordinance No. 98-2582 
adopted on November 19, 1998; Ordinance No. 99-2619 adopted on March 18, 1999; Ordinance No. 
99-2629 adopted on May 6, 1999; Ordinance No. 99-2631 adopted on May 20, 1999; Ordinance No. 
99-2647 adopted on August 19, 1999; Ordinance No. 99-2678 adopted on December 16, 1999; 
Ordinance No. 2000-2682 adopted on January 6, 2000;  Ordinance No. 2000-2729 adopted on 
October 19, 2000; Ordinance No. 2001-2772 adopted on June 7, 2001;  Ordinance No. 2001-2782 
adopted on July 19, 2001; Ordinance No. 2001-2793 adopted on September 20, 2001; Ordinance No. 
2001-2807 on November 15, 2001; Ordinance No. 2001-2813 on December 20, 2001;  Ordinance No. 
2002-2833 on March 21, 2002; Ordinance No. 2002-2838 on April 18, 2002; Ordinance No. 2002-
3847 on June 20, 2002;  Ordinance No. 2002-3848 on June 20, 2002; Ordinance No. 2002-3868 on 
October 17, 2002; Ordinance No. 2003- 3888 on February 20, 2003;Ordinance No. 2003-3894 on 
April 17, 2003; Ordinance No 2003-3926 on September 18, 2003; Ordinance No. 2004-3695 on July 
1, 2004;  Ordinance No. 2004-3975 on August 19, 2004; Ordinance No. 2004-3981 on September 16, 
2004;  Ordinance No. 2005-4001 on May 5, 2005; Ordinance No. 2005-4038 on September 15, 2005; 
 Ordinance No. 2006-4051 on January 5, 2006; Ordinance No. 2006-4076 on the 18th day of May, 
2006;  Ordinance No. 2006-4118; Ordinance No. 2007-4141 on the 19th day of April, 2007;  
Ordinance No. 2007-4155 on July 19, 2007; Ordinance No. 2007-4172 on the 20th day of September, 
2007; Ordinance No. 2007-4173 on October 25, 2007;  Ordinance No. 2008-4201 on the 21st day of 
February, 2008; and Ordinance No. 2008-4217 the 15th day of May, 2008;  Ordinance No. 2008-4242 
the 21st day of August, 2009; Ordinance No. 2009-4290 on the 16th day of April, 2009; Ordinance No. 
2009-4294 on the 21st day of May, 2009; Ordinance No. 2009-4316 on the 17th day of September, 
2009; Ordinance No. 2009-4320 on the 15th day of October, 2009; Ordinance No. 2010-4338 on the 
18th day of February, 2010; Ordinance No. 2010-4371 on the 19th day of August, 2010; Ordinance No.  
 



 
 

2 

 
2010-4405 on November 4, 2010; Ordinance No. 2011-4429 on March 17, 2011; Ordinance No. 
2011-4455 on July 21, 2011; Ordinance No. 2011-4477 on October 20, 2011; Ordinance No. 2012-
4540 on June 21, 2012; and Ordinance No. 2012-4546 on July 19, 2012; Ordinance No. 2012-4554 on 
September 20, 2012; Ordinance No. 2012-4566 on November 15, 2012; Ordinance No. 2013-4595 on 
June 20, 2013; Ordinance No. 2014-4665 on May 15, 2014; 
 

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Zone has adopted an additional amendment to the 
Reinvestment Zone  Financing and Project Plans for the Zone and forwarded such amendment to the 
Council for appropriate action; 
 

Whereas, the Council finds it necessary to amend the Reinvestment Zone Financing and 
Project Plans for the Zone to include financial information as hereinafter set forth;  

 
Whereas, the Council finds that it is necessary and convenient to the implementation of  the 

Reinvestment Zone Financing and Project Plans, including the additional amendment, to establish and 
provide for an economic development program within the meaning of Article III, Section 52-a of the 
Texas Constitution ("Article III, Section 52-a"), Section 311.010(h) of the Texas Tax Code and 
Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code to develop and diversify the economy of the Zone, 
eliminate unemployment and underemployment in the Zone and develop or expand transportation, 
business and commercial activity in the Zone including programs to make grants and loans of Zone 
assets or from the tax increment fund of the Zone in an aggregate amount not to exceed the amount of 
the tax increment produced by the City and paid into the tax increment fund for the Zone for activities 
that benefit the Zone and stimulate business and commercial activity in the Zone as further 
determined by the City;  
 

Whereas, the Council further finds that the acquisition of the land and real property assembly 
costs as described in the additional amendment to the Reinvestment Zone Financing and Project Plans 
are necessary and convenient to the implementation of the Reinvestment Zone Financing and Project 
Plans and will help develop and diversify the economy of the Zone, eliminate unemployment and 
underemployment in the Zone and develop or expand transportation, business and commercial 
activity in the Zone by providing land for development of future business and commercial activity, 
attracting additional jobs within the City and attracting additional sales and other taxes within the 
City; and 
 

Whereas, the Council finds that such amendment to the Reinvestment Zone Financing and 
Project Plans is feasible and conforms to the Comprehensive Plan of the City, and that this action will 
promote economic development within the City of Temple. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. The statements contained in the preamble of this ordinance are true and 
correct and are adopted as findings of fact hereby. 
 



 
 

3 

 
 
Part 2: Reinvestment Zone Financing and Project Plans. The amendment to the Tax 

Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, heretofore adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Zone and referred to in the preamble of this ordinance, is hereby approved and 
adopted, as set forth in the Amendments to Reinvestment Zone Number 1, City of Temple, Texas, 
attached hereto as Exhibits A and B.  
 

Part 3: Plans Effective. The Financing Plan and Project Plans for the Zone heretofore in 
effect shall remain in full force and effect according to the terms and provisions thereof, except as 
specifically amended hereby. 

 
Part 4: Copies to Taxing Units. The City Secretary shall provide a copy of the amendment to 

the Reinvestment Zone Financing and Project Plans to each taxing unit that taxes real property located 
in the Zone. 

 
Part 5: Economic Development Program. The Council hereby establishes an economic 

development program for the Zone in accordance with Article III, Section 52-a of the Texas 
Constitution, Section 311.010(h) of the Texas Tax Code and Chapter 380 of the Texas Local 
Government Code to develop and diversify the economy of the Zone, eliminate unemployment and 
underemployment in the Zone and develop or expand transportation, business and commercial 
activity in the Zone including a program to make grants and loans of Zone assets or from the tax 
increment fund of the Zone in accordance with the provisions of Article III, Section 52-a, Chapter 311 
of the Texas Tax Code and Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code as directed and 
authorized by the Council.  The Council hereby further directs and authorizes the Board of Directors 
of the Zone to utilize tax increment reinvestment zone bond proceeds to acquire the land and pay 
other real property assembly costs as set forth in the additional amendment attached hereto to help 
develop and diversify the economy of the Zone and develop or expand business and commercial 
activity in the Zone in accordance with Article III, Section 52-a, Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code 
and Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

 
Part 6: Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 8: Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act. 



 
 

4 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of May, 

2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS     
   
                

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	Doshier-Budget Adjustment - RAS Replacment Matous Construction.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form




